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At the request of Ajanta Pharma Limited (APL), the Holding Company of Ajanta Pharma USA Inc. 
(' APUI ' or ·the Company"), registered as a limited liability Company in ew Jersey, United States 
of America, we have audited the financial statements of the Company, which comprise the Balance 
sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), 
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind A ) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act') read with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 
March 2024, and profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for 
the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SA) specified under section 
143( I 0) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor 's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained ts 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements. 

Other Matter-Restriction on Use 

These financial statements are prepared for the use of the Company and the Holding Company, 
Ajanta Pharma Limited and are prepared for the sole purpose of consolidation of financial statements 
of Holding Company. These financial statements are not the statutory financial statements of the 
Company. As a result, these financial statements may not be suitable for any other purpose. Our 
report must not be copied, disclosed, quoted, or referred to, in correspondence or discussion, in whole 
or in part to anyone other than the purpose for which it has been issued without our prior written 
consent. 
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BS R & Co. LLP 

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Holding Company, APUl"s Management and their Board of Directors are responsible for the 
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, 
profit/loss (includ ing other comprehensive Income), changes in equity and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 (as amended from time to time). This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, Holding Company. APUI 's Management and the Board of 
Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures in the financ ial statements made by the Management and 'tf-.~ 

.,,--.=:::::::,-...H rd of Directors. / 
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Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Co11tinued) 

■ Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosure are inadequate, to modi fy our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

■ Evaluate the overall presentation, strucn1re and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identi fy during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

Mumbai 

02 May 2024 

For BS R & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm 's Registration o: 101 248W/W-100022 

Sreeja Marar 

Partner 

Membership o: 111 410 

UDI : 2411 141 0BKGQ X4305 



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc 

Balance Sheet 
11s 111 31 March 2024 

(Currency USO) 

Assets 

Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Other intangible assets (other than self generated) 
Right-of-use assets 
Deferred tax assets (net) 

Current assets 
Inventories 
Financial assets 

Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Other current assets 

Equity and Liabilities 
Equity 
Equity share capital 
Other equity 

Liabilities 
'on current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 
Lease liabilities 

Current liabilities 
Financial habilities 

Lease liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other financial hab1lities 

Other current liabilities 
Current tax liabilities (net) 

Material accounting policies 

Total assets 

Total equity and liabilities 

Total non-current assets 

Total current assets 

Total equity 

Total current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

The note referred 10 above form an integral part of financial statement 

As per our report of even date attached 

For B S R & Co. LLP 
Chanered Accountan/s 

Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-1 00022 

reeja Marar 
Parmer 

Membership No: 1114 10 

Place • Mumbai 
Date 02 May 2024 
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I 106 

31 March 2024 
SD 

533,647 
240,572 
308,637 

12,829,382 
13,9 12,238 

26,687,273 

83,539,406 
5,559,742 
1,140,146 

116,926,567 

130,838,805 

1,000,000 
14,469,603 
15,469,603 

132,256 

177,250 
91,020,953 
21,039,513 
2,103,398 

895,832 
l lS,236,9-t6 

115,369,202 

130,838,805 

31 March 2023 
USO 

547,991 
343,678 

55,910 
9,168,156 

10,115,735 

21 ,394,579 

72,698,524 
3,245,971 

430,121 
97,769, I 95 

I 07,884,930 

1,000.000 
11 ,387,812 
12,387,812 

79,080 
72.63 1 874 
16,871 ,6'11 
3,286,478 
2,628,045 

95,497, I I 8 

95.497. I I 8 

107,884.930 

7 10 39 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
of Ajanta Pharma l 'SA Inc. 

Yogesh :\I. Agra,, al 
Director 

DIN· 00073673 

Place . Mumbai 

Date 02 May 2024 



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc 

Statement of Profit and Loss Account 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(Currency: USO) 

Income 
Revenue from operations 
Other income 

Ex penses 
Purchase of stock-in-trade 

Total income 

Changes in inventories of finished goods/work-in-progress/stock-in-trade 
Employee benefits expense 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Other expenses 

Total expenses 
Profit before tax 

Tax expense 
For current year 
Deffered tax 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income / (loss) 
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 

Net other comprehensive income / (loss) to be reclassified subsequently to profit or 
loss 
Other comprehensin income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 
years 
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans 
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

l\et other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 
years 
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax 
Total comprehensive income fo r the year 

There are no exceptional items and discontinuing operauons. 
Ea rning Per Equity Share (Basic & Diluted) (Face Value USO 100/-) 

Material accounting policies 
The note referred to above form an integral part of financial statement 

As per our report of even date attached 

For B R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022 

4· 
mj, 1 

Parmer 
Membership No: 11 1410 

Place . Mumbai 
Date • 02 May 2024 

'ote 

21 
22 

23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 

30 

I 10 6 
7 to 39 

3 I March 2024 31 March 2023 
U D USO 

114,063,199 104,814,084 
78,242 

114,141,441 104,814,084 

IO I ,436, 799 81 ,920,958 
(5,292,694) 5,753,340 
5,412,128 5,645,743 

36,797 58,863 
262,552 308,682 

8,345,414 9,269,025 
I I 0,200.996 I 02, 956,611 

3,940,445 1,857,473 

4,594,962 5,761 ,640 
(3,661,227) (5,341 ,759) 

3,006,710 1,437,592 

3,006,710 1,437,592 

300.67 143.76 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
of Ajanta Pharma SA Inc. 

Yogesh i\1. Agrawal 
Director 

DIN : 00073673 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 02 May 2024 



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
fnr the year ended 3 I Mtuch 20].J 

rCurrcncy USD) 

Aulhori.s.-d : 

luu,ed : 

~ubscrilltd & Paid uo: 

Aulhorind: 

lnucd: 
~ubscnbcd 11. Paid uo: 

As: .u t Arri! 2022 

Partitulars 

Chn.r.ecs m acCQL:ntinij poha/pnor pcnod errors 

R-=statcd balnncc :1s al I Apnl 2022 

Profil lor- thcpcnod 

Other comprchc:ns,n: income 

To:al comprchcnmc 1nc;omc 

Stock options ofholdma compan) gr:ui1cd 

Al J I March 2023 

Chan~s m zccoun~na pol,c,. . poor pcnod crron 

Restated b~ancc as at I Apn! 2023 

Profit for the pcnod 

Other comprchcns1\'c income 

Total u,mprcnct\S1\C mco:nc 
o,,.,dc:-nd Paid 

Slock 0pt,ons of hoklm& rompa~ gr:tnlcd 

At JI March 2024 

(; 
1. 
\. .. 

. ' 

' ----

81l1ncc • s 11 Changes in 
01 April 2023 Equity Share 

Capital due 10 

prior period 
errors 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

1.000.000 

Bi: lant.e u at Changes in 
0 I April 2012 Equity Share 

Capital dut: to 
prior pe.riod 

errors 

1.000,000 

1.000.000 

1.000,000 

C cncrnl 
Reserve 

(1..167,902) 

(1,567,902) 

(1.567,902) 

(I .5G7 ,902) 

(1,567,902) 

Rt>Clttd Changu in Balance as al JI 
b1l1nce 11 the equity 1h1re March 1024 
beginnin& of capital durinc 
the turrr:nt tht ) Uf 

ritportinc 

1,000,000 1.000.000 

1.000.0(Kl I.OO(l .1•00 

1,000.000 1.000.000 

Rcslatcd Changes in Bal■ncc as at 3 1 
balance a l the equity s hare March 2023 
lxginninc or capital durin& 
the currc-nt theyur 
rcport1n& 

1,000,000 1.000.000 

1,000.000 1,000.000 

1.000.000 1,000.000 

Rclalncd Equil)' Total Equity 
E1mings contribution 

from Holding 
~------ --. 

I IJU,386 115.738 9,950.122 

11.182.136 135,738 9,950,222 

1,437.592 1,0 7.592 

1.• J7,592 1,437,592 

12.319,975 IJ5,7J8 I l ,J87.3IJ 

l?.319,975 IJ~.7J8 I 1,Jl7,31J 

3,006,710 J.006,710 

l.006,710 J,006,710 

1c.og1 75.081 

15.326,685 210.319 1 ◄,469,60J 

--



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
for lhe year <'IK.led JI A,fc,rch 202-1 

(Currency USO) 

Nalurt of Rtsuvn 
a) Genera I Rtstrvt 

The General reserve is used from time 10 time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes 

b) Rct1intd Earnings 

Retained Earnings arc 1hc profits that the Company has earned till date less any transfer to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders 

c) Equity Contribution from Holding Company 
The fair value of options granted by Parent company to employees of the company are recognised as Equity Contribution from Holdmg Company wuh a corresponding 
charge to employee benefits expenses 

Material accounting pohc1cs 
The accompanying nolts form an integral part of the fim1nci1I statcmcnu 

For B S R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountams 

~&~ ,oo, .. WM•O=> 

l'arr11a ,:.:CJ 
Membership No 111410 

Place Mumbai 
Date 02 May 2024 

I 106 

710 39 

For and on behalf of Board of Dirtctors of 
Ajant• Pharma USA Inc. 

Yogesh M. Agrawal 
D1rull)r 

DIN 00073673 

Place Mumbai 
Date 02 May 2024 



Ajanta Phanna USA Inc 

Statement of cashflow 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(Currency: USD) 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

!lJ.ll. !,&[2 

A. Cash now from operating activities 
Profit before tax 3,940,445 1,857,473 

Adjustment for 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 262,552 308,682 

Finance costs 36,797 58,863 

Provision for doubtful debt 7,784 

Employee stock option expense 75,081 

Operating cash now before working capital changes 4,322,660 2,225,018 

Changes in working capital 
Decrease / (Increase) in trade receivable (10,848,667) 7,861,055 

(Increase)/ Decrease in other current assets (710,024) 229,495 

Decrease/ (Increase) in inventories (5,292,694) 5,753,340 

(Decrease) in other current liabilities (1,183,080) (526,448) 

(Decrease) / Increase in other current Financial liabilities 4,167,872 702,740 

(Decrease) / Increase in trade payables 18,389,080 (14,742,617) 

Cash generated from operations 8,845,146 1,502,583 

Net income tax (paid) (6,327,174) (1,809,530) 

Net cash now generated from operating activities 2,s1,,m (306,947) 

B. Cash now from investing activities 
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment including capital advances (35,789) (53,334) 

Net cash used in investing activities (35,789) (53,334) 

C. Cash now from financing activities 
Payment oflease liability (includes interest of S 22976 in year ending on 31 March 2024) (154,590) (176,45 1) 

Interest paid (13,821) (58,863) 

Net cash used in / from financing at:tlvities (168,411) (235,314) 

Net (decrease) / increase in <:ash and cash equivalents (A+ B + q 2,313,772 (595,595) 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 3,245,971 3,841,566 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 5,559,743 3,245,971 

Figures in brackets indicates outflow. 

Note: 
I. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under 1ndircct Method' as set out in Accounting Standard 7 (Ind AS - 7) "Statement of Cash Flow" under 

Section 133 oflhc Companies Act 2013. 

2. Cash comprises cash on hand, current accounts and deposits with banks. Cash equivalents arc short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or 
less from the date of acquisition). 

3. Movement in lease liabilities (refer note 33) 

Material accounting policies 
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For B S R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

:~ ,012<Bwm 1oom 

Partner 
Membership No: I I 14 I 0 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 02 May 2024 

I to 6 
71039 

For and on behalf of Board of Diret:tors of 
Ajanta Pharma USA Inc. 

Yogesh M. Agrawal 
Director 

DIN : 00073673 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 02 May 2024 



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

1. Corporate Information 

Ajanta Pharma USA Inc. is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in United States 
of America and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India. The address of its 
registered office is located at 440, US Highway, 22, East Bridgewater, New Jersey 08807, USA. 

Company is primarily involved in the business ofphannaceutical and related activities. 

2. Basis of preparation 

Statement of Compliance 

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the 
Indian Companies Act, 2013 ("'the Act"). 
These financial statements do not constitute a set of statutory financial statements in accordance 
with the local laws in which the Company is incorporated and are prepared for the sole purpose of 
the Consolidation of Ind AS financial statements of the Company with Ajanta. 

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost basis, 
except otherwise stated. 

The Financial Statement for the year ended 3 1 March 2024 have been reviewed by the Audit 
Committee and subsequently approved by Board of Directors of Ajanta Pharma USA Inc at its 
meeting held on 02 May 2024. 

3. Use of estimates and judgements: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent 
liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could c.liffer from those estimates. 
Estimates and under lying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to 
accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods. 

The areas involving estimates or judgements are as follows: 

Judgements: 

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant 
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes 

Classification of Lease as per Ind AS 116: 

Ind AS I I 6 Leases requires a lessee to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a 
lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is 
reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease tenn on lease by lease 
basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the 
contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any 
significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term. costs relating to the termination 
of lease and the importance of the underlying lease to the Company's operations taking into account 



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc. 
otes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

the location of the underlying asset and the availability of the suitable alternatives. The lease term in 
future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic 
circumstances. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate speci fic to the 
lease being evaluated or for a portfol io of leases with similar characteristics. 

Estimates: 

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that have a 
significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year is included in the following notes. 

Property, Plant and equipment 

Useful lives of tangible assets, as determined by the company and assessed on an annual basis, is 
based on the life prescribed in Schedule II of the Act. In cases, where the useful lives are different 
from that prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 20 I 3, prevalent in India, they are based 
on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset. the estimated usage of the asset, the 
operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, 
manufacturers' warranties and maintenance support. 

Intangible Assets 
Internal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets. Management 
believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable. 

Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances 
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by 
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are written 
off when management deems them not collectible. Impairment is made on the expected credit loss 
model. 

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption about risk of default and 
expected loss rates. Judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the 
impairment calculation arc based on past history, existing market condition as well as forward 
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 

Allowances for inventories 

Management reviews the inventory age listing on a periodic basis. The review involves comparison 
of the carrying value of the aged inventory items. The purpose is to ascertain whether an allowance 
is required to be made in the financial statement for any obsolete and slow-moving items. 
Management is satisfied that adequate allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories has been 
made in the financial statements. 

Management also reviews net realizable value for all its inventory and is satisfied that adequate 
allowance has been made in the financial statements. 

Recognition of current and deferred tax assets and income tax 

Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can 
be utilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be available while recognising 
deferred tax assets. 

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and deferred tax 
assets and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of 



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc. 
otes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual outcome which could lead 
to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial statements. 

Recognition and measurement of other provisions 

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability 
of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at the balance sheet 
date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary from the figure included 
in other provisions. 

Contingencies 

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources. if any, in 
respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the 
outcome of pending matters with accuracy. 

Impairment reviews 

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit ('CGU') exceeds 
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its 
value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. In calculating 
the value in use, certain assumptions are required to be made in respect of highly uncertain matters, 
including management's expectations of growth in EBITDA, long tern1 growth rates; and the 
selection of discount rates to reflect the risks involved 

• ...,. Amounts deducted from revenue for the projected chargeback, sales returns, rebates and 
Merticaid 

Tltc significant adjustments to the revenue are broadly explained below: 
(a) A chargeback is a claim made by the wholesaler for the difference between the prices at which 
the product is initially invoiced to the wholesaler and the net price at which it is agreed to be 
procured from the company. Provision for chargeback is calculated on the basis of historical 
experience and specific terms in the agreements 

(b) Sales return is variable consideration that is recognised and recorded based on historical 
experience, market conditions and provided for in the year of sale as reduction from revenue. The 
methodology and assumptions used to estimate returns are monitored and adjusted regularly in line 
with trade practices, historical trends, past experience and projected market conditions. 

(c) Provision for rebate is calculated on the basis of historical experience and specific terms in the 
agreemen·ts. Charge back, rebates, returns and medicaid payments are variable consideration that is 
recognised and reccrded based on historical experience, market conditions and specific contractual 
terms. TI1e methodology and assumptions used to estimate rebates and returns are monitored and 
adjusted regularly in line with contractual and legal obligations, trade practices historical trends, past 
experience and projected market conditions. 

(d) Following a decrease in the price of a product, the Company generally grants customers a "shelf 
stock adjustment" for a customer's existing inventory for the involved product. Provisions for shelf 
stock adjustments are determined at the time of the price decline or at the point of sale. if the impact 
of a price decline on the products sold can be reasonably estimated based on the customer's 
inventory levels of the relevant product. 



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc. 
otes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

4. Functional and Presentation Currency 

These financial statements are presented in United States Dollars (USO) which is also the functional 
currency. All the amounts have been rounded off to the nearest USO, unless otherwise indicated. 

5. Current I non-current classification 

An entity shall classify an asset as current when-

(a) it expects to realise the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle; 

(b) it holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading; 

( c) it expects to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

(d) the asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used 
to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

An entity shall classify all other assets as non-current. 

An entity shall classify a liability as current when-

(a) it expects to settle the liabili ty in its normal operating cycle; 

(b) it holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading; 

(c) the liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

(d) it does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the 
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its 
classification. 

An entity shall classify all other liabilities as non-current. 

Operating Cycle 
An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation 
in cash or cash equivalents. 

Based on the nature of products I activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition 
of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating 
cycle as twelve months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities lS current and 
non-current. 

6. Material Accounting Policies 

6.1 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes 
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs arc included 
in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset as appropriate, only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost of assets, to their residual 
values over their estimated useful life as follows: 
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Particulars Useful Life 
Building 27.5 years 
Furniture, Fixtures & Fittines 10 vears 
Computer Software's 5 years 

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each end of 
reporting period. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable 
amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals of 
property, plant and equipment are detennined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and arc 
included in the statement of profit or loss. 

Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets arc recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are 
attributable to the assets will flow to the Company and the cost of the assets can be measured 
reliably. 

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. 
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the 
related expenditure is reflected in Statement of profit and loss in the period in which the cxpenciture 
is incurred. 

Software is amortised over their estimated useful life on straight line basis from the date they are 
available for intended use, subject to impairment test. 

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life 
are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the 
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to 
modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting 
estimates. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss when the assets are derecognised. 

Impairment on non-financial assets 

The Company's non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at 
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impainnent. If any such 
indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows (i.e. corporate assets) 
are grouped together into cash-generating units (CG Us). Each CGU represents the smallest group of 
assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or 
CGUs. 

The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. 
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the CGU. 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated 
recoverable amount. Impairment loss recognized in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the 
carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CG Us) on a pro rata basis. 
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An impairment loss in respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior 
periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has 
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the 
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that 
the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, 
net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. 

6.2 Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Financial Assets 

Classification 

Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through 
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business model 
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

Initial Recognition and Measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not 
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition 
of the fi nancial asset. 

Subsequent Measurement 

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financ ial assets are classified in two broad categories: 
• Pinancial assets at fair value (FYTPL / FVTOCI) 
• Financial assets at amortised cost 

When assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses arc either recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive 
income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)). 

Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost (net of any write down for impairment, if any) 

Financial assets arc measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business mode!, whose 
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such 
financial assets arc subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) 
method less impairment, if any. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement 
of profit and loss. 

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value th~ough Other Comprehensive Income ("FVTOCI") 

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair 
value. when asset is held within a business model. whose objective is to hold assets for both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized 
in the other compreh.ensivc income. • 

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss ("FVTPL"): 
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Financial assets under this category arc measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair 
value with all changes recognised in profit or loss. 

Derecognition of Financial Assets 

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have 
expired or Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset. 

Impairment of Financial Assets 

In accordance with Ind - AS 109, Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for 
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instruments 
and trade receivables. 

Financial Liabilities 

Classification 

Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. 

Initial Recognition and Measurement 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent Measurement 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading 
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated 
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender 
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such 
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the 
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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6.3 Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is 
based on the movLng weighted average basis, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the 
inventories and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition. et 
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated 
selling expenses. 

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis. The Company 
considers various factors like shelf life, ageing of inventories, prod!.!ct discontinuation, price changes 
and other factors which impact the company's business in determining the allowance for obsolete, 
non-saleable and slow, non-moving inventories. The company considers the above factor and adjusts 
the inventory provision to reflect its actual performance on actual basis. Goods in transit are valued 
at actual cost incurred up to the date of balance sheet. 

6.4 Cash and cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed 
deposit/highly liquid investments with original maturity period of three months or less that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short­
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they arc considered an 
integral part of the group's cash management. 

6.5 Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the 
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash 
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash 
flows. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are 
segregated. 

6.6 Foreign Currency Transactions 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the Company's functional currency at the 
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies arc translated into the functional 
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are 
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the 
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are 
measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency arc not translated. Foreign currency 
exchange differences arc generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on h·anslating monetary items 
at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or 
in previous Financial Statements are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in 
which they arise. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in Other 
Comprehensive Income, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in Other 
Comprehensive Income. Conversely, when a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in 
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Statement of Profit and Loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

6.7 Revenue Recognition 

Sale of Goods 

The Company applied Ind AS 11 5 using the modified retrospective approach. 

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price adjusted for chargebacks, discounts and rebates, 
which is speci.fied in !i contract with customer. Revenue arc net of estimated returns and taxes 
collected from customers. 

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control is transferred to the 
customer and it is probable that consideration will be collected. Control of goods is transferred upon 
the shipment of the goods to the customer or when goods is made available to the customer. 

The transaction price is documented on the sales invoice and payment is generally due as per agreed 
credit terms with customer. 

The consideration can be fixed or variable. Variable consideration is only recognised when it is 
highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur. 

Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis. Insurance and other claims are recognised as 
a revenue on certainty of receipt on prudent basis. Export benefits available under prevalent schemes 
are accounted to the extent considered receivable. 

Dividend income is recognised when the Entity's right to receive the payment is established, which 
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend. 

6.8 Employee Benefi ts 

Short-term Benefits - 171c Company recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an 
expense for services rendered by employees during the accounting period. Short-term benefits given 
by the Company to its employees include salaries and wages, social securi ty contributions, Medicare 
contributions, and other non-monetary benefits. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to 
be paid; if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result 
of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably. 

Post-Employment Benefits - The Company provides a 40 I (k) retirement program for full-time 
employees who are 21 years of age or older. Eligible employees are entitled to partidpate in the 
company offered plan with an option to contribute up to the maximum of 3% of annual base salary. 
For employees with an annual base salary above the annual compensation limits, as determined by 
the Federal Internal Revenue Service (Federal), the annual J\ PUI contribution will be capped at 3% 
of the Federal allowed annual compensation limits. All contributions are 100% vested immediately 
to the employee. 

Share-based compensation 

Employees Stock Options Plans ('·ESOPs"): The grant date fair value of options granted to 
employees is recognized as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the 
period that the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options. The expense is recorded 
for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was, in substance, multiple awards. 
The company recognizes compensation expense relating to share-based payments in net profit using 
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fair-value in accordance with Ind AS I 02, Share-Based Payment. The ESOPs (shares of holding 
company) are granted to the employees of the company. 

Provisions (other than employee benefits) 
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 
present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is 
recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for. 

6.9 Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs comprise of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the 
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of an asset that takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale 
are capitalized as pa1t of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in 
which they occur. Transaction costs are charged to statement of profit and loss as financial expenses 
over the term of borrowing. 

6.10 Lease 

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement at the inception date, whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of 
a speci fie asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not 
explicitly specified in an arrangement. 

6. 11 Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity 
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the 
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for 
deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that 
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential 
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at 
fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, 
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each 
period presented. 

6. L2 Income Taxes 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. 
Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent 
that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other 
comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount 
expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the respective Country's tax rates 
and tax laws that have been enacted by the balance sheet date. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. 
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DeferTed tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance 
sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable 
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. 
The effect of changes in_ tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as 
income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. /\ 
deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will 
be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be ut il ized. The 
Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right 
to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

6. 13 Dividends to Shareholders 

Annual di.vidend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which 
the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on 
approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable is recognised directly in equi ty. 

6.1 4 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments 

General 
Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. 

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted to its 
present value and arc determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the 
balance sheet date. These arc reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates. 

If there is any expectatinn that some or all of the provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursement is 
recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense 
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any virtually certain 
reimbursement. 

lfthc effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax 
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of: 
• A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources 

will be required to settle the obligation; 
• A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimates is possible; 

.....-::::=::~ .... 
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• A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is 
remote. 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements. Contingent assets 
are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statements. 

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to pa11ies for 
completion of assets and Non-cancellable operating lease. 

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance 
sheet date. 

6.15 Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet 
date in accordance with Ind AS 113. 

Financials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following 
material items in the statement of fmancial position: 
• Derivative financial instruments in the nature of forward foreign exchange contracts are 

measured at fair value received from Bank. 
• Mutual Funds are measured at fair values as per Net Asset Value (NA V). 
• Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Black Scholes option pricing model. 

Fair vah1e is the price that would be received to sell an asset or settle a liability in an ordinar; 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic 
best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-linancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 
market_ participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimising the us~ of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
• Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 
• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is unobservable. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 
Company determines whether transfers have occun-ed between levels in the hierarchy by re­
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 
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For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and 
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of 
the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

6.16 Recent accounting pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") noti fi es new standard or amendments to the existing 
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For 
the year ended 31 March, 2024, MCA ha5 not notified any new standards or amendments to the 
existing standards applicable to the Company. 
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7 
7.1 

Property. plant and equipment, capit:: I work-in -progress, investment property and other inta11giblr assets (other than self generated) 
A s at 31 March 2024 

7.2 

Particula,s 

A Property , Planl 11nd Equip mC':nC 

Freehold land 

8 u1ldmgs 

f-um1turc and fixture 

To1nl 

B 01her inlnngible a.s.sels 

Computer software 

T otsl 

T otal (A) + (B) 

C lnU1n~1blc assets under development 

Total (A)+ (B) + (C) 

A s al 3 1 March 2023 

Particuhu-, 

A Propcr1y, Planf and Equipmenl 

Freehold land 

Buildings 

Furniture and fixture 

Total 

B Other intangib!r: u .1e1s 

Computer soflware 

Total 

Tot•I (A) + (B) 

C Intangible assets under c!cvelopmcnt 

Gross Block (Cost Or Deemed Cost) 

01 April 2023 Add1uons Disposals Ad1ustmen1s 

256.500 

362,461 -
218,252 8,267 

837,214 8,267 - . 

653,476 27,522 . 
653,476 27,522 . . 

1.490,690 3 5,789 

164,367 

Gross Block (Cost Or D«:mcd Cost) 
01 Aprtl 2022 Add1t1ons D 1sposaJs Adjustments 

256,500 

362,461 

218.252 

837.214 

600.!42 53,334 

600,142 5J.JJ4 

1.437,355 53,334 

164.367 

Accumula1cd Dcprcc1aI1on/Amo111sat10n 

J I March 2024 01 April 2023 For the D1spos.Jls Ad1ustme:ms 

- Year 

256.500 

362.461 120,938 13,177 . 
2~6.519 168,284 9,434 -
845,480 289,222 22,61 I . 

680,998 309,797 I 30,628 . . 

680,998 309,797 130,628 . 

1,526,478 599,0 19 153,239 . 

164.367 164.367 

AccumuletcJ Deprcc1auon/Amon1sauon 

3 I March 2023 01 Apnl 2022 For the D1spoi.als Ad10.stmcnts 

Year 

256,500 

362.461 107,756 13.182 

218.252 164.724 3,560 

837.2 14 272,48 1 16,742 

653.476 185,587 124,210 

653,476 185,587 124,210 

1,490,690 458,069 140,952 

164.167 164.367 

Not Olock 
JI J\larch 2024 JI J\l•rch 2024 

256.500 

134,115 228,346 

177,718 48,801 

J I 1,833 533,647 

440,425 240.572 

440,425 240,572 

752,258 774,21 Y 

164,167 

774,21 9 

Net Block 
3 I March 2023 3 I March 2023 

256.500 I 
120,938 241,521 

168.284 49,968 

289.223 547.~9 1 

309,797 343,678 

309,797 3 43,678 

599,020 891.669 

164,367 

89 1,069 
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7 Right-of-use asset (Refer note 33) 
7.3 C urrent Year 

· I P•rticular, I Auril 2023 

Leasehnld pro?crt,e,i (refer note 33) 720,830 

726,830 

7A Prcv:o:is Year 

Panicul•rs I A11ril 20 22 

Leasehold p,opcrt1cs (refer note 33) 726,830 

Tola! 726,8.lO 

Gross Block (Cost Or Deemed Cost) 

Addttinns Disposals Adjc!:tments 

362,040 

362.040 

Gross Block (Cost Or Deemed Cost) 

Add111cns Disposals Adjustmeuts 

Accumulated Depreciation/ Amortisation Net Block 

31 Morch 2024 I April 2023 For the Disposals AdJUSLments JI March 2024 JI l\11rch 2024 

Year 

1,088,870 670,920 t09,313 780,233 308,637 

1,oss,s;o 670,920 109.J J3 780,233 308,637 

Accumula1ed De1ireciAt1011/Amon1sa1ion Net Block 

3 I March 2023 I Apnl 2fJ22 For the Disposals AdJUStme:>ts 31 March 2023 J I March 2023 

Year 

726,830 503,t90 167,730 670,920 55,910 

720,830 503.190 167.730 670,920 55,9t0 
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8 Dcfered IMX assets (net) 

1 ~ la'< cfT'ec1s of ~gmfican1 1cmporary difference 1ha1 resulted 1n deferred tax asse1 and hab1l1t1es and 
a description of that crca.1cd these d1ffcrcncc 1n given btlow (refer note 38) 

Tax effect of items const1tuung - Deferred tax assets 

Lca\lc Encashmcnt 
Provisjon for Loss Allowance 
Others 
Chargcbacks, Rebates, Admin Fees 
263A Capitalization Cost 
Acc1ual for Sales Return for expired Good.s 

Tax effect of items constnuung • Deferred tu liabilities 
Difference in tax ba" of propcny, plant and equipment 

Deferred tL, useu (net) 

9 Inventories 

(A) 

(B) 

(C) 

(D) 

(E) 

(f ) 

(G) 

(A+B•C+D+E+F}-(G) 

Stock-in-Trade (including in transit USO 587,821, 31 M•rch 2023 USO 541,943) 

31 March 2024 

USD 

25,65-1 

24,287 

7,150 

8,218,315 

37,400 

4.528.455 

11,879 

12.829,382 

12,829,382 

26.687,273 

26,687,273 

31 March 2023 

USO 

27,174 

4S,083 

(9,097) 

S,4S2,190 

2S,976 

3,667,426 

40,S96 

9,168,1 S6 

9,168,IS6 

21,394,579 

21,394,579 

Dunng th< }Car, the group recorded inventory write downs of USO 108,311 (31 March 2023 USO 116,702) Th= adJUstmcnts were 
included m cost of material consumed and changes in inventories 

JO Trade receivables 

U11sccuretl, considered good unlus othtrwiu staled 

-Trade recevables cons:dered good 
Trade rcte:i\lablcs wh1i:h have s1gmficant mcrease in crccht nsk 
Trade rcceiYilbles credit impaired 

Less Los3 allowance 

'folll Trade r«th t blts 

Axcin,t Schedule for trade receivables as on ll Mar 2024 

Particu lan 

,i) Und1Sputed Trade receivables - considered doubtful 
(11) Undisputed Trade Reccwablcs - which have significant increase in 

credn nsk 
(111) Und1Sputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
(1v} Dtsputed Trade Receivables-conS1dered good 
(v) 01Sputed Trade Recetvables - wluch have significant increase in credit 
ml 
t \.1) D1.Soutcd Trade Rcce1vablcs - credit imoa1red 
Toul 
L~ss - Loss Allowance 
Tota l Trade Rttcinbles 

Attin2 Sc.hed ulc for Lnde rttcin bles IJ on 31 M ar 2023 

Particulars 

(i) trndisputed Trade receivables - considered doubtful 
(11) Undisputed Trade Rcee1vables - which have sigmficant increase in 

credit risL 
(iii) t:nd1sputcd Trade Rcct1vabl~ - credit impaired 
(1v} Disputed Trade Recc1vables-considercd good 
(v) Disputed Trade Rcccwablcs- ~tuch have Stgruficant increase in credit 
nsk 
(,i) 01Sputc1 Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
To,al 
Less - Loss AJlowan<:c 

To,al r radt Rtttinblcs 

11 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and ca.sh equivaltnlS 
Balance wnh bL'1ks - m amen, accounts 

I 

I 

83,539,406 72,698,524 

83,539,406 72,698,524 

83,539,406 72.698,524 

83,539,406 72,698,S24 

Not Out 
I Ouu11ndin2 for follo~ in2 pc.riod from due d11e of pavmt n1 

I Lett lha• 6 monlht 6 months -1 )Hr 1-2 n •r 2.J ) Hrl Mott !ban J ,urs 

8J,S39,406 

83,539,406 . 

Not Due 
I Ou1standin2 ror rouowin2 oeriod from due dale ofoa\ mcnt 

I W. 1han 6 month• 6 month.I - 1 lur 1-l yur 2..J!Hn Mon lhan J ,,.n 

72,698,524 

72,698,524 

5,559,742 3,245,971 

5,559,742 3,245.971 

Tot•I 

83,539,406 

. 

83,539,406 

83,539.4~~ I 

Tot•I 

72,698.524 

72,698,5l4 

72,698,524 



J\janta Pha1111a USA Inc 

Noles to the Financial State m ents (Continued) 
,u at JI /i.1arc:h ]02./ 

!Currency l'SD) 

12 O ther current assets 

Prepaid C'<pense 
Advances 10 suppliers 
Advances to employees 

13 Equity share capita l 

Au1horutd : 

Common Stocks of USD I 00 each 

lssutd, Subscribed .._(t Paid up : 

Common Stocks of USO 100 each fully Paid up 

JI March 2024 
USD 

1,129,412 
10,630 

104 

1,140,146 

JI Man:b 2024 

Numbtr or Sbarts USD 

10,000 1,000,000 

10,000 1,000,000 

J I March 2023 

USO 

429,577 

151 

393 

430,121 

31 ~ larch 2023 

Number of USD 
Sha.es 

10,000 1,000,000 

10,000 1,000,000 

(a) Rtconcili11ion of uumbtr of tquily sharts ouu landing al tht bcgin_n_i~ng~ ••_1d_1_1_1_h,_,_,_,d_o_f_1t_1<~yc..•-•-• _: ________________ _ 

14 

15 

16 

:-lumber of sharrs ouutanding as 11 tht b<ginning of the year 
Add Numher of shares allotlcd as fully paid-up during the year 
Less Number of shares bought back dunng the year 
!\'umber of shares out!ttandin~ as at the end of the year 

(b) Righu, prtftrcnces and rtstrictions auachtd to shares 

31 M1n:h 2014 

Numbu ofShuu 

10,000 

10,000 

USD 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

The company has issued only one class of equity shares with voung rights having I par value of USO 100 per share 

Th company bas not declared any d1V1dcnd 
1:1 the c,tnt ofliGuidation of the company, tht holders of equity shares will be entitled to rccei-..c remaining asscu of the company 
The d1Mribut1on will be m propon,on to the numbers of equity shares held by shareholder, 

l I March 2023 

Number of USO 
Shares 

10,000 1,000,000 

10,000 1,000,000 

(c I Ot'rnilJ of equity shart'holden holJing more 1h:m s•1. 1 llolding co;:;"'-''P:.:•::.ny'-'-/ :..cP•c::•::.m::.•c.:"::.'..::h:.:•::.ld:.:in_:,:g._ _______ __________ _ 
~umC" orSlu.reholdrr 31 March 2024 JI March 2023 

Number of Shar6 % holding Number of ' • holdmg 
Shares 

\ Janta l'ha:mJ I td India• 10,000 100.00 10,000 10000 

,. Thtre is no change m •·• of promoter holding in the current year as well as previous year 

(d) ShutS rtitrvtil for inue under optio1u Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Other equity 

Ctntral rt'stn c 

B:1l•ntt at the bcgmnmg of the year (1,567,902) (1 ,567,902) 

Add Transftrrcd from Statement of Profit & Loss 

Balance as at the Y"Ar ('f,d (1,567,902) (1 ,567,902) 

Enh:tnge Joluctuation Restrvt 

Equity contri~ution from Holding Corn p:any 

Emplo)·ec stock options 
Balance 11 the beginning of the year 135,731 135,738 

Charge dunng t~ year 75,011 

Balance as at th.! ) ear end 210,11 9 135,7?~ 

Rrtainrd earnings 

81lancc II the beginning of the year 12,819,975 11,382,385 

Profit for the year 3,006,710 1,437,592 

Balance at tht ~·ear e.nd 15,116,615 12,819,975 

Tot:11 01hu equity 14,469,603 11,387,812 

Lease liabilities (non current) 

1..,..., loabih11cs {n:fcr note 33) 132,256 

132,256 

Lease liabilities (current) 

Luse habthues ( refer note J J) 177.250 79,080 

177,250 79,080 



/\janta Phanna USA Inc 

'\otes to the Fin a n cial Stat e m e nts (Continued ) 
a, at J / Afard, 202.J 

1Currel1C} USD) 

17 Trade payables 

18 

19 

20 

Trade Jn,yablcs 10 related P3ny (rcref note 36) 
Other Payables 

The follo,-,ng IS ageing schedule for Trade oavables u at 31 March 2024 

P1r1itul.1rs 

(i)MSME 
(1i) Others 

(111) DISputed dues - MS:-.iE 
(iv) D1souted dues - Others 

To11I 

The following IS ageing schedule for Trade parables u a, 31 March 2023 

Panicultn 

(i)MSME 
(ii) 01hers 

(ni) Dispu1ed dues MSME 
(I\') Dis01,ttd dues Othm 

Total 

Other financia l liabi lities (current) 

Pro\1s,on for anticipated sales return (Refer note 34) 

Other c urrent liabilities 

01hcrs payables 

C urrent ta~ liabilities (net) 

Unbilltd 

Unbilled 

Pro,1>1on for tu (net of advance iax USD 6,304,146 (31 March 2023 USD 1,836,687)) 

JI March 2024 
USD 

17,205,390 
J ,ltS,563 

9t,020,953 

Not dut 

58,390,009 

51,390,009 

01 due 

57,130, 103 

57,130,103 

2t,039,513 

21,039,513 

2,103,398 

2, tOJ,.}91 

195,132 

195,132 

~ss 1ban 1 
Vtlr 

32,630,944 

32,630,944 

W11h1n I 

n1r 

14,801,771 

14,801,771 

3 I March 2023 
USD 

69,296,746 
J,JJS,127 

72,6] 1,874 

1-lyun 

1-l yun 

16,871,641 

16,871,641 

3,286,478 

3,286,478 

2,628,045 

2,628,045 

2-3 ye1n Mort than J )tars Total 

91 ,020.953 

91,020,953 

2•3 )Cl'1 Mort than l )Un To11I 

72,631.874 

72,631,874 



/\janta Pharma USA Inc 

'-olts to tht Fina ncial S tattmtnts (Continutd) 
m m 3 I Alar<.lr 101-1 

(l'urrcncv USD) 

21 Revenue from 011erations 

Salt or product, 

Stock-in-Trade 

Rcconc11iation of rc\lcnuc from operations with contracted parties 

Contracted price 
Adjustments 

• Chargcback, rebates and discounts 

- Sales return 
- Others (price adJustment, anticipated sales return) 
Sal< of products 

JI Mirth 2024 

USO 

114.063, 199 

l 14.,06J,199 

570,927,286 

4JJ,598,J71 

6,880,774 

16,384,943 

114.063.199 

31 March 2023 

USD 

104,814,084 

104,814,084 

542,922,837 

415,521,50 I 

6,715,269 

15,871,984 

104,814,084 

The company norm3lly sells goods on credit which varies from 14 to 21 days for domestic sales and 30 to 270 days in case ofexpon sales This does not involve any significant financing clement 

Rc\'cnuc from 3 customers c,cced Hl'e of Company's Total RC\enuc amounting to S 52 51 million 

22 OTIIER INCOME 

~hsccllancous Income 

23 Purchase of stock-in-trade ( Rela led party) 

2-1 C hanges in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-1lrogress and Stock-in-

Im tntoriu 11 lht end or the year : 

Stock-in-trade 

lnHnlorits al thf bqinning or lht' )Ur: 

Stock-in-trade 

Total c.hanies in innntorits offinisht'd goods, " ork-in-proirt.n 

To1al chungts in ini.·fntorit:s or finished goods, work-iu-progrtu and 

s1ock-in-1r.1dt : 

25 Employee benefit expense 

Salancs, wages, bonus and allowances 

Employee welfare expenses 
Fmplor« stock opt,on .-pensc (refer note 37) 

Contnbunon 10 statutO<) fund, (refer note 3 I) 

26 Finance costs 

Interest C..'tpcnscs 

lntcreSt on Lease hab1hty (refer note 33) 
Other borrowing cost 

27 Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Dcprccia11on of propenv. plant and equipment (Refer note 7) 

.\mon1sat1on of intangible assets (Refer note 7) 

Deprcc:1a11on of rig.ht-of.use assets (Refer note 7) 

(~ 
\\* 0. 

- ~~ 
rc<1 Acee 
~ 

(A) 

(0 ) 

(B) -(A) 

78,242 

7',242 

IO I ,436. 799 

26,687,273 

26,687,273 

21,394,579 

21,394,579 

(5,292,694) 

4,564,490 

415,606 

75,081 

356,951 

5,412,128 

22,976 

IJ,821 

36,797 

22,611 

130,628 

109,JIJ 

262,552 

81,920,958 

21,394,579 

21,394,579 

27,147,919 

27,147,919 

5,753,340 

4,855,328 

375,162 

415,253 

5,645,743 

58.863 

58,863 

16,742 

124,210 

167,730 

308,682 



:\ janta Pharma USA Inc 

'\'otes to thr Financial Statements (Continued) 
of a, JI \1arth 202J 

Curren<) USD) 

28 Other Expenses 

Clearing and forwarding 
Scllmg c"<pcnscs 

Insurance 

Travelling expenses 
T elephonc, teln & post1ge 
Legal and Professional Fees 
Repairs to others 
Power and fuel 

Ren1 (refer note Jl) 

Provision for doubtful debt 
Miscellaneous expenses 

JI M1rch 2024 

USD 

5,616,099 

958,823 

305,611 

304,369 

549,725 

466,800 

624 

1,778 

43,594 

7,784 

90,137 

1,345,414 

31 March 2023 
USD 

6,602,916 

984,987 

306,937 

304,278 

525,842 

438,269 

2,727 

3,283 

2,724 

97,062 

9,269,025 



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(Currency: USO) 

29. Capital Management 

The capital structure of the Company consists of equity and cash & cash equivalents. The 
Company's objective for capital management is to maintain the capital structure which will 
support the Company's strategy to maximize shareholder's value, safeguarding the business 
continuity and help in supporting the growth of the Company. 

The Company determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long­
term and other strategic investment plans. 

Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'adjusted net debt' to 'total equity'. For this 
purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as debt less c:ish and cash equiv?.lents and current 
investments. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity. 

Company's policy is to keep the et debt equity ratio below 1.00 and its adjusted net debt 
to equity ratio at 31 March 2024 was as follows. 

Particulars 

Total Borrowing 

Less: cash and cash equivalents 

Adjusted net debt 

Equity 

Adjusted net debt to Equity ratio 

30. Earnings Per share (EPS): 

A 

B 
A/B 

31 March 2024 

5,559,742 

(5,559,742) 

15,469,603 

(0.36) 

USO 

31 March 2023 

3,245.971 

(3.245.971) 

12.387,81 2 

(0.26) 

The numerator and denominator used to calculate Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share: 

Purticulars 31 ~larch 2024 3 I March 2023 

Basic and diluted earnings per share: 
Proiit attributable to Equity shareholders- for Basic EPS A 3,006,710 1.437.592 
(USO) 
Add: Dilutive effect 011 profit (USO) B 

·umerator for calculating dilutive earnings per share (USO) C=A-B 3,006,710 1.437.592 

WeighteCI average number of equity shares outstanding - for D 10,000 10.000 
I basic EPS 

Add: Dilutive e!Tect of ESOP outstanding- Number of E 
Equity Shares 
Weighted awrage number of equity shares for diluted EPS F=D+E 10,000 

10.000J 
Face value per equity share (USO) 100 100 

Basic earnings per share (ti D) Am 300.67 143.76 

Diluted earnings per shares (USO) C/F 300.67 143.76 



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(Currency: USO) 

31. Employee benefits 

As required by Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits ', the Company offers its employees: Short­
term employee benefits - These benefits include salaries and wages and other government 
contributions which are due withi n 12 months after the end of the period in which employee 
renders the related service. The Company's accrual on account of vacation liabilities 
amounted to USO I I 9,188 (31 March 2023 USD 125,044). 

Retirement plan - The Company provides a 40 I (k)-retirement program for full-time 
employees who are 21 years of age or older. Eligible employees are entitled to participate in 
the company offered plan with an option to contribute up the maximum 3% of annual base 
salary. for employees with an annual base salary above the annual compensation limits, as 
determined by the Federal Internal Revenue Service (federa l), the annual APUI contribution 
will be capped at 3% of the Federal allowed annual compensation limits. All contributions 
are I 00% vested immediately to the employee. The Company also provides a profit-sharing 
contribution in to the 40 I (k) account which is discretionary. The total expense for employee 
retirement benefit plan includ ing the profit-sharing contribution for the year ended 31 March 
2024 was USO 356,951 (31 March 2023: USO 415,253). The Company does not carry any 
fu rther liabilities other than contribution made. 

32. Financial Instrument - fair values and risk management 

Fair value measurements 

Financial instruments by category 

financial assets 

Trade receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Total finau~ ial assets 

Financial liabilities 

Lease liabilities 

Other current financial liabilities 

Trade payables 

Total financial liabilities 

31 March 2024 

Amortised Cost 

83,539,406 

5,559.742 

89,099,148 

309,506 

21,039,513 

91,020,953 

112,369,972 

USD 
31 March 2023 

Amortised Cost 

72,698,524 

3.245.971 

75,944,495 

79.080 

16.871,641 

72,631,874 

89,582,595 

There are no financial instruments classified as fair Value through profit and loss and fair 
value through other comprehensive income. fair value measurement of lease liabilities is 
not required. 

A. Financial risk management 

Company has exposure to following risks arising from financial instruments: 

• Credit risk 

• Liquidity risk 

• Market risk 



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(Currency: USD) 

32. Financial Instrument - fair values and risk management (Continued) 

Risk management framework 

The Company's activities are exposed to financial risks. These risks include market risk, 
credit risks and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management program seeks to 
minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company through 
established policies and processes which are laid down to ascertain the extent of risks, setting 
appropriate limits ar.d controls and continuous monitoring and compliance of the same. 

i. Credit risk 

/ 

1-:-
I • 

Credit risk the risk that a counter patty will not meet its obligations under a financial 
instrument or customer contract, leading to a financ ial loss. The Company is exposed to 
credit risk from its operating activi_ties (primarily trade receivables) . and from its 
financing activities, including deposits with banks other financial instruments. 

Other financial assets 

The Company limits its exposure to credit risks by depositing its cash only with financial 
institutions duly evaluated and approved by the Board of Directors. 

Impairment: 

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected 
credit loss for trade receivables: 

1ot due 

Past due upto 180 days 

Past due 181-365 days 

Past dues 366 - 730 days 

Past dues 73 1 - I 096 days 

More than 1096 days 

otdue 

Past due upto 180 days 

Past due 181-365 days 

Past dues 366 - 730 days 

Past dues 731 - I 096 days 

More than I 096 days 

Carrying amount 

83,539,406 

83,539,406 

Carrying amount 
72,698.524 

72.698,524 

31 March 2024 
Weighted average 

loss rate 

0% 

0% 

0% 

Oo/o 
0% 

0% 

31 :\larch 2023 

Weighted average 
loss rate 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

Loss allowance 

Loss allowance 

~- , 
~.'!; -

...!:.~ 



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(Currency: USO) 

32. Financial Instrument - fair values and risk management (Continued) 

The above financial assets were not impaired as there had not been a significant change 
in credit quality and the amounts were still considered receivable based on the nature of 
the activity of the customer portfolio to which they belong and the type of the customers. 
There are no other classes of financial assets that are past due but not impaired except 
for Trade receivables as at 3 I March 2024 and 31 March 2023 

Trade receivable 

Company's credit risk is minimal. The trade receivables arise mainly from transactions 
with its approved customers. The maximum exposure to credit on these transactions is 
equal to the carrying amount of these financial instruments. Customers are subject to 
stringent financial, credit and legal verification process. In addition, trade receivable 
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure timely collections. Accordingly, 
the Company's exposure to bad debts is not significant. 

As at 31 March 2024, Company had 22 customers (31 March 2023: 23 customers) that 
owed the company more than$ I 00,000 each and accounted for approximately 99% and 
99% respectively of the total outstanding as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. 

Expected credit loss assessment 

The Company allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data 
that is determined to be predictive of the risk of loss (e.g. timeliness of payments, 
available press information etc.) and applying experienced credit judgement. 

As per simplified approach, the Company makes provision of expected credit losses on 
trade receivable using a provision matrix to mitigate the risk of default payment and 
make appropriate provision at each reporting date wherever required. The trend of the 
bad debts is negligible. 

Gro~s Carrying amount 

Average Expected loss rate 

Carrying amount of trade receivables (net of 
impainnent) 

31 March 2024 

83,539,406 

0.00% 

83,539,406 

31 March 2023 

72,698.524 

0.00% 

72.698.524 

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables 
during the ye:ir was as follows: 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

L

B- a-lan- ce_as_ a_l th_e_ b:_e_g-in-ni-ng- of-tl-1c_)_·e-ar ____________________ :-J 
Impaim1enl loss n:co~nised (net) 

Amounts written ofT 

Ilalance as at the year end 
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(Currency: USO) 

32. Financial Instrument - fair values and risk management (Continued) 

ii. Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future 
cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's 
objective is to, at all rimes maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and 
collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and 
deploys a robust cash management system. Working capital requirements are adequately 
addressed by internally generated funds. Trade receivables are kept within manageable 
levels. 

Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly 
marketable debt investments at an amount in excess of expected cash outflows on 
financial liabilities over the next six months. The ratio of cash and cash equivalents and 
other highly marketable debt investments to outflows is 0.05 at 31 March 2024 (3 1 
March 2023: 0.03). 

Exposure to liquidity risk 

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the 
repo1iing date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest 
payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements. 

As at 
31 March 2024 

Trude payables 
current 

Lease liabilities 

Other current 
financial liabilities 

Total 

As at 
31 March 20B 

Trade payables 
current 

Lease liabilities 

Other current 
financial liabilities 

Total 

Carrying 
Amount 

9 1,020,953 

309,506 

21 ,039,513 

112,369,972 

Carrying 
Amount 

72,63i .874 

79,080 

16,871,641 

89,582,595 

Tota l 

91,020,953 

309,506 

21,039,5 13 

112,369,972 

Total 

72,631 ,874 

79,080 

16,871,641 

89,582,595 

Contractual Cash Flows 

0-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years 

91,020,953 

177,250 132,256 

2 1,039,513 

112,237,716 132,256 

Contractual Cash Flows 

0-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years 

72,631 ,874 

79,080 

16,871 ,641 

89,582,595 

More than 
5 years 

~lore than 
5 years 
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(Currency: USO) 

32. Financial Instrument - fair values and risk management (Continued) 

iii. Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, 
interest rates and equity prices - will affect the Company's income or the value of its 
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is 10 manage 
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the 
return. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, 
deposits, investments, and derivative financial instruments. The Company's exposure 
from market risks is primarily on account of interest rate risk. 

a) Currency risk 

The Company does not have foreign exchange risk as their entire dealings are in 
their local functional currency i.e., US Dollars. 

b) Interest rate risk 

The Company does not have any debt obligation. bank deposits or other securities. 
There is no exposure lo change in interest rates. 

c) Price risk 

Company does not have any exposure lo price risk, as there are no equity 
investments. 



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc 
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(Currency: USO) 

33. Disclosure for leases: 

The Company have taken a premise under operating lease. The lease is for a period o f five 
year and renewable every year upon mutual consent of the parties. There are no contingent 
rents. 

Right-of-use assets 

As at 31 March 2024 

Cost 

As at I April 2023 

Additions to ROU assets 

De-recognition of ROU assets 

13alance at 31 March 2024 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

As al I April 2023 

Depreciation 

Balance at 31 March 2024 

i As at 31 March 2023 

Cust 

As at I Aoril 2022 

! Addition~ to ROU assets 

Dc-recog11ition of ROU assets 

Balance al 31 March 2023 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

As at I April 2022 

Depreciation 

Balance at 31 March 2023 

C:i rrying Amounts 

A~ al I April 2023 

Balance at 31 March 2024 

As at I April 2022 

Balance al 31 March 2023 

Land and Buildings 
USO 

726.830 I 
362.040 

1,088,870 

670.920 

109,3 13 1 

780.233 

Land and Buildings 
USO 

726,830 

726,830 

503,190 

167.730 

670.920 

5:i.910 

3,08,637 

223,640 

55,910 

Lease expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss not included in the 
measurement of lease liabilities: 

F;c.,
1
,~ 31 Mac<h ~~; 31 M=h ~02~. 1 

I Short-term and low value lease expense 43,59-' 

ILT_ot_a_I l_e_as_e_e_x_p_en_s_e __________________ -'3_,5_9_4 __ 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(Currency: USO) 

33. Disclosure of Leases (Continued) 

Cash outflow on leases 
l'articulars 

Cash outflow on leases 

Total cash outllow on leases 

Movement in lease liabilities 

Opening Lease liabilities 

Addition during the year 

Interest accrued during the year 

Payment of Lease liabilities (including interest) 

Closing Lease liabilities 

Non-Current 

Current 

31 March 2024 

USD 
(154,590) 

(154,590) 

31 March 202-t 

79,080 

362,040 

22,976 

(154,590) 

309,506 

132,256 

177,250 

31 March 2023 

USO 
(176.45 1) 

( 176.451 ) 

31 March 2023 

255.531 

(176.451 ) 

79.080 

79,080 

.. , Maturity analysis of lease liabilities - contractual nndiscountcd cash 
flows 

Less than I year 

I to 5 years 

More than S years 

31 ;\farch 2024 

201,946 

11 9,221 

34. Provision for anticipated sales return: 

Particulars 

Balan.:e at the beginning of the year 

Add: Provisions made during the year 

Less: Amount written back/utilized during the year 

Balance at the cn<l of the year 

35. Contingent Liabilities and commitments: 

31 March 2024 

16,871,641 

11,048,646 

6,880,774 

21,039,513 

31 March 2023 

83,420 

USD 
31 March 2023 

16,168,902 

7,418.003 

6,715,269 

16,871.641 

T here are no contingent liabilities. The company has various contracts with customers with 
commitment to supply the products as per terms of agreement. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(Currency: USO) 

36. Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 arc given below: 

37. 

A) Relationships where control exist: 

Category I - Holding Company & Fellow Subsidiary 

Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India (Holding Company) 

Category II - Directors, Key Management Personnel & their Relatives: 

Dr. Ramesh Jhawar Director (A PUI) 

B) Following transactions were carried out with related parties: 
USO 

Sr. Particulars Category 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
No. 
I. Purchase of Goods: 

Ajanta Phanna Ltd .. India IO 1,436,799 81,920,958 

2. Key Management Compensation: 
Short Term Employee Benefits 
Dr. Ramesh Jhawar II 610,618 575,960 

3. Charges for Shared Services 171,827 145.842 

C) Amount outstanJing as on 31 March 2024 
USD 

Sr. Particulars Category 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
No. 
I. Trade Payable: 

Ajanta Pham1a Ltd., India 87,205,390 69,296.746 

Share based payments 

The Holding Company has established "Employee Stock Options Scheme 20 11 " (' ESOP-
201 1 ') and Share based Incentive Plan 2019 as approved in earl ier year by the shareholders 
of the Company and Compensation committee of Board of Directors for the key employees 
of the Company. The options issued under the above scheme vest in a phased manner. 

During the year, the company made the decision to withdraw the Employee Stock Options 
Scheme 20 11 in the omination & Remuneration committee meeting held on January 31, 
2024, with immediate effect. 

During the year 91 ,350 option have been granted and 3,750 option cancelled by the 
Company under the Share based Incentive Plan 2019 to the employees (including KM P's) 
of the Group. 



Ajanta Pharma USA Inc 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(Currency: USO) 

37. Share based payments (Continued) 

Grunt Date No. of option 
Granted 

'o. of Option Exercise Price (f) 

10 May 2022 
05 May 2022 

27 July 2023 
11.600 
79,750 

Cancelled 

2.000 
1.750 2.0 

2.0 

Vesting Period 

OS May 2024 to 05 May 2026 
27 July 2024 to O I January 2027 

The options are granted at an exercise price which is in accordance with the relevant SEBI 
guidelines in force, at the time of such grants. Each option entitles the holder to exercise the 
right to apply for and seek allotment ofone equity share on 2/- each. The particulars of the 
options under ESOS 20 I I and Share based Incentive Plan 2019 arc as under: 

Particulars 

Options out~tanding as at the beginning of the Year• 
Add: Options granted during the Year 
Less: Options exercised during the Y car 
Less: Options lap,ed/cancelled during the Year 
Options outstanding as at the Year End 

31 M::rch 2024 
Particulars 

Nos. 

Options outstanding as at the beginning of 4,000 
the year 
Add: Options granted during the year 91,350 
Less: Options exerci5ed during the year 1,000 
Less: Options lapsccl/cancellcd during the 3.750 
year 
Options outstanding as at the year end 90.600 

Particulars 31 March 
2023 

'os. 

Options outstanding as at the beginning of the 3,000 
Year 
Add: Options granted during the Year 2,000 

Le s: Options Exercised during the Y car 1,000 

Less: Options bpsed/cancellt:d during the 
Year 
Options outstanding as at the Year End 4,000 

Range of 
Exercise 

Prices (f ) 

2.0 

2.0 
2.0 

2.0 

Range of 
Exercise 

Prices ~ ) 

2.0 

2.0 
2.0 

2.0 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 I 
Nos. os. I 

Weight.:d 
Average 
Exercise 

Prices (f ) 

2.0 

2.0 
2.0 

2.0 

Weighted 
Average· 
Exercise 

Prices (f ) 

2.0 

2.0 
2.0 

2.0 

4,ooo 3.ooo I 
91.350 2.000 

1.000 1,000 
3,750 

90,600 

Weighted 
Average 

share 
price at 
the date 

of 
exercise 

(f ) 

1,3 12.60 

Weighted 
A\'Crage 

share 
price at 
the date 

of 
exercise 

(f) 

1,147.41 

4.000 

Weightctl 
Average 

Contractual 
life (Years) 

1.60 

1.36 

1.37 

Weighted 
Average 

Contractual 
life (Years) 

1.08 

1.31 

1.60 

Effect of share-based plan in profit & loss and balance sheet 
For details of the related employee benefits expense and equity contribution from holding 

-----==-..... company, refer note 25 and 14 respectively. 
o.. ~ Co. f..t_ ~ . 

' ·\/,' 
. • ······~~t-
'-.: ---✓-o" 

'' _' . I ,(,_::'. -----
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
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37. Share based payments (Continued) 

Description of the method and significant assumptions used during the year to estimate the 
fair values of the options, including the following weighted average information: 

Variables 
Plan 

Grant date 

Last date for acceptance 

Risk free rate (%) 

Expected Life (years) 

Volatility(%) 

Dividend yield (%) 

Price of the underlying share 
in the market at the time of 
option grant (t) 

Fair value of options (t ) 

Exercise price (~) 

Valuation of stock options 

Weighted Average Information 
Share Based Incentive Plan 2019 

500 option 3,000 option 13,000 option 
27 September 2019 20 May 2020 27 July 2023 

27 October 2019 19 June 2020 25 August 2023 

5.20 5.20 7. 14 

2 I to 4 

13.74 14.67 13. 12 

0.55 0.71 0.86 

1,055 1.439 1,553 

1,041 1,425 1,522 

2 2 2 

The fair value of stock options granted during the period has been measured using the Black­
Scholes option pricing model at the date of the grant. The Black-Scholes option pricing 
model includes assumptions regarding dividend yields, expected volatility, expected terms 
and risk-free interest rates. They key inputs and assumptions used are as follows: 

hare price: The closing price on NSE as on the date of grant has been considered for 
valuing the options granted. 

Exercise Price: Exercise Price is the market price or face value or such other price as 
determined by the Remuneration and Compensation Committee. 

Expected Volatility: The historical volatility of the stock till the date of grant has been 
considered to calculate the fair value of the options. 

Expected Option Life: Expected Life of option is the period for which the Company expects 
the options to be live. The minimum life of a stock option is the minimum period before 
which the options cannot be exercised and the maximum life is the period after which the 
options cannot be exercised. 

Expectecl dividends: Expected dividend yield has been calculated as an average of dividend 
yields for four years preceding the date of the grant. 

Risk free interest rate: The risk-free interest rate on the date of grant considered for the 
1.:alculation is the interest rate applicable for a maturity equal to the expected life of the 
options based on the zero-coupon yield curve for Government Securities. 

These assumptions reflect management's best estimates, but these assumptions involve 
inherent market uncertainties based on market conditions generally outside of the 
Company's conrrol. As a result, if other assumptions had been used in the current period, 
stock-based compensation expense could have been materially impacted. Further, if 
management uses different assumptions in future periods, stock-based compensation 
expense could be materially impacted in future years. The estimated fair value of stock 
options is charged to income on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of each 

~ arately vesting po11ion of the award as if the award was, in-substance, lti le awards. 

#1 ~ -~ ~< ~\-\;>.RM,4 u 

{*(£]:~ ,:ORPORATE\ 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(Currency: USO) 

38. Income Tax 

Income tax (expense) / benefit recognized in the income statement consists of the following: 

a. Current tax 
Current tax on profit for the year 
Total Current Tax expenses 
DefCITed tax cxpense/(benefit) 
Origination and reversal of timing di !Terence 
Adjustment for deferred tax of prior periods 
Total Deferred Tax expenses 
Total income tax recognised in the income statement 

IJ. R.!conciliation of effective tax rate 

Accounting profit before income taxes 
Enacted tax rate in USA• 
Computed expected ta:< (benefit) / expenses 
/\djustmen! for deferred tax of prior periods 

Expenses that are not deductible in determining 
taxable profit 
Expenses not deducted in books but allowed for tax 
purpose 

talc Taxes 

Federal True-up 

Effect of instating opening balance of deferred tax 

Effect of instating opening balance of current tax 
Ir.come tax expenses 
Effective tax ratr 

31 March 2024 

4,594,962 
4,594,962 

(3,661,227) 

(3,661,227) 
933,735 

31 March 2024 
3,940,445 

21% 
827,494 

2,986 

103,255 

933,i35 
24% 

31 ~larch 2023 

5,761.640 
5.761.640 

(5,341.759) 

(5.341.759) 
419,88 1 

31 March 2023 
1.857,473 

21% 
390.069 

2,588 

27,223 

'119.881 
22% 

*The tax rate used for the above reconciliation is the corporate tax rate applicable to the 
Company under tax laws of United States of America. 

c. Recognised deferred asset and liability 

Deferred tax , ti deferred t:ix 

Property .Plant and equipment 

Leave F:ncashmcnt 

Provision fur Loss Allowance 

Guarantee foes paid to holding company 

Stock option 

Chargebacks, Rebates, Admin Fees 

263A Capitalization Cost 

...-'.:==,I.._ 
ales Return for expired goods 

n-cd fa~ asset/(liabilitie~) 

Deferred tax as~rt 

31 ~larch 31 March 
2024 2023 

25,654 27,174 

24,287 45.083 

7,150 

8,218,315 5,452,190 

37,400 25,976 

4,528,455 3,667,426 

12,84 1,261 9,217,849 

liabilities asset/(lia oi Ii ties) 

31 31 31 March 31 
March March 2024 Murril 
2024 2023 2023 

11 ,879 40,596 (11,879) (40.596) 

25,654 27,174 

24,287 45.083 

9,097 7,150 \9,097) 

8,218,3 15 5. 152.190 

37,400 25,976 

4,528,455 3.667.426 

9, 168,ISG 
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38. Income Tax (Continued) 

d. Movement in deferred tax balances 31 March 2024 
'et balance Recognised 

as on I in Profit 
April 2023 and loss 

Propeny ,Plant and equipment (40,596) 28,717 

Leave Encashment 27, 174 ( 1,52 ]) 

Provision for Loss Allowance 45.083 (20.796) 
Guarantee Fees paid to holding 
company 
Stock option (9.097) 16.247 

Chargebacks. Rebates. Admin rces 5.452.190 2,766. 125 

263A Capitalization Cost 25,976 11 ,424 

Sales Return for expired goods 3,667.426 86 1.029 

Net deferred tax asscl/(liabilitics) 9,168,156 3,661,227 

d. Movement in deferred tax balances 31 March 2023 
'ct balance Recognised 
as on I in Profit and 

April 2022 loss 

Property. Plant and equipment 

Lca,e Encashment 27,1 74 27.1 74 

Provision for Loss Allowance 45,083 45,083 

Guarantee Fees paid to holding 
company 
Stock option 

Chargebacks, Rebates, Admin Fees 5,452.190 5.452.190 

263A Capitalization Cost 25,976 25,976 

ales Return for expired Goods 3,667,426 3,667,426 

ct deferred tax asset/(liabilitics) 3,835,525 5,332,63 1 

-~ &Co 

tf0.i 
~ . ) *} 

I :~"d 
/~&Y 

\. .. ~/_.,;" 
-=~/ 

'et Deferred Deferred tax 
tax asset liabilities 

(11 ,879) ( I 1,879) 

25.654 25,654 

24.287 24,287 

7,150 7,150 

8,2 I 8.3 15 8,218,315 

37,400 37,400 

4,528,455 4,528,455 

12,829,382 I 2,841,261 ( 11 ,879) 

et Deferred Deferred 
tax asset tax 

liabi lit ies 

27,174 27,174 27.17-1 

45,083 45,083 45,083 

- I 

5.452, 190 5,452.190 5.452.190 

25.976 25,976 25,976 

3.667.426 3,667,426 3,667,426 

9,168,156 9,21 7,849 (49,693) 
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39. The Company has presented data relating to its segments based on its consolidated financial 
statements. Accordingly, in terms of paragraph 4 of the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 
I 08) "Operating Segments", no disclosures related to segments are presented in this financial 
statement. 

In terms of our report attached 

For B S R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022 

~ ' 

s , eeja::G 
Partner 
Membership No: 11 1410 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 02 May 2024 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 
Ajanta Pharma USA Inc. 

Yogesh M. Agrawal 
Director 

DIN: 00073673 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 02 May 2024 



0\ 1 G. R. MODI lB CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
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Independent Auditor's Report 
To the Members of Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Ltd.(Consolidated) 

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 
The accounts of AJANT A PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD and AJANT A PHARMA 
MAURITIUS INTERNATIONAL LTD. are being audited under the local laws of the country by 
the statutory auditor for the period 1st Jan 2023 to 31st December 2023. Financial Statements of 
AJANTA PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD. consolidated with Ajanta Pharma Mauritius 
International Ltd for the period 1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024. The holding company Ajt ta 
Pharma Limited (India) follows the period 1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024. In orde to 
consolidate the accounts of Ajanta Pharma Mauritius Ltd(Consolidated)with that of the hol ·ng 
company, we have been appointed by the management of the company to audit the reinstated 
accounts of AJANTA PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD.(Consolidated) for the period 1st April 
2023 to 31st March 2024 under the companies Act in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles in India (Ind AS). 

Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of AJANTA 
PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD. (CONSOLIDATED) ("the Company") (hereinafter referred to 
as the ' Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together 
referred to as "the Group"), comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 
2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), 
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the 
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements") prepared in accordance with group accounting 
policies followed by Ajanta Pharma Ltd. These Consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared solely to enable Ajanta Pharma Ltd. to prepare its consolidated financial statements. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and 
profit/loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor ·s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated financial 
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
theCode of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these re • nts and the Code of Ethics. We 
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believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 
The Company' s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free 
from materia] misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company' s financial reporting 
process in accordance with the group accounting policies followed by Ajanta. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor' s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books 

( c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 



(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
"Annexure A". 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor' s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would h'Ilpact its financial position; 

ii. The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts, 
requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable 
losses; and 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

for G.R.Modi& Co 
Chartered Accountants 

number: 112617W 

CA Swapnil Modi 
Partner 
Membership number: 107574 
Mumbai 
Date: 29th April 2024 

UDIN No 24107574BKASEX2890 



Annexure -A to the Auditors' Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of AJANTA PHARMA 
MAURITIUS LTD. (Consolidated)("the Company") as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with 
our audit of the Consolidatedfinancial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (' ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company' s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information: as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") 
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by !CAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor' s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial rep01ting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repo1ting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ofindia. 

for G.R.Modi& Co 
Chartered Accountants 

CA Swapnil Modi 
Partner 

ber: 112617W 

Membership number: 107574 
Mumbai 
Date: 29th April 2024 

UDIN No.: 24107574BKASEX2890 



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited 

Consolidated Balance Sheet 
as at 31 March 2024 

(Currency: MUR) 

Assets 

Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Asset held for sale 
Right to use assets 
Financial assets 

Other financial assets 
Total non-current assets 

Current assets 
Inventories 
Financial assets 

Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Other current assets 
Total current assets 

Total assets 

Equity And Liabilities 
Equity 
Equity share capital 
Other Equity 

Note 

8 
9 

8 

10 

11 

12 
13 
14 

15 
16 

31 March 2024 
MAU.Rs 

1,736,582 

387,983 

401 ,634 
2,526,199 

146,337,303 

173,246, 116 
68,101,027 

106,416,539 
494,100,985 

496,627,184 

31 March 2023 
MAU. Rs 

2,500,972 
5,000,000 

387,983 

479,167 
8,368,122 

361,276,708 

225,359,762 
135,454,023 

70,604 
722,161,097 

730,529,219 

61,379,100 61,379,100 
429,732,606 528,214,313 

Total equity ______ ...;.4.:.91:..,,.:.11:...:1"-, 7:..:0:..:6 _ ___ 5_8_9.a..,5_9_3,._4_13_ 
Liabilities 
Non current liabilities 

Lease liability 

Current liabilities 
Trade payables 

Other current liabilities 

17 

18 
19 

393,743 393,743 

124,782, 157 
5,121 ,735 15,759,907 

Total current liabilities ___ _ _ __ .:5:.:., 1:.:2:.:1.e;,7:..:3:..:5 _____ 14_0-'-,5_4_2-'-,0_6_4_ 

Total equity and liabilities 496,627,184 730,529,219 

Significant accounting policies 
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

In terms of our report attached 
For G. R. Modi & Co. 

Swapnil Modi 
Partner 
Mumbai, 29 Apr, 2024 

uDIN: 2Y10-=1-s:+y Bk ASEx.2-&90 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
of Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited 

ctor 
Mumbai, 29 Apr, 2024 



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(Currency: MUR) 

Income 
Revenue from operations 
Other income 

Total income 
Expenses 
Purchase of stock-in-trade 
Changes in inventories of finished goods/work-in-progress/stock-in-trade 
Employee benefits expenses 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Other expenses 

Total expenses 
Profit before tax 

Tax expense 
Current tax 
De ffercd tax 

Profit for the year 

Earning per equity share (Basic & Diluted) (Face value MURIOO/-) 

Significant accounting policies 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

In terms of our report attached 
For G. R. Modi & Co. 

, apnil Modi 
Partner 
Mumbai, 29 Apr, 2024 

umN: 2 l...f lo :r--s-:,..l.J e KA sf'x 2..Bqo 

Note 

20 
21 

22 
23 

24 
25 
26 
27 

29 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
MAU. Rs MAU.Rs 

337,078,968 646,072,280 
162,890 5,829,082 

337,241,858 651 ,901,362 

64,455,33 1 301,302,681 
214,939,405 198,324,279 

36,434,340 37,740,886 
4,508 14,270 

3 15,890 1,339, 188 
119,432,935 156,945,345 
435,582,409 695,666,649 
(98,340,551) (43,765,287) 

141, 156 (2,627,965) 

(98,481,707) (41,137,321) 

(160.45) (67.02) 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
of Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited 

r 
r 

Mumbai, 29 Apr, 2024 



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(Currency: MUR) 

Note: 

A. Cash flow from operating activities 
Profit before tax 
Adjusbnent for 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Finance costs 
Unrealised foreign exchange difference 

Operating cash flow before working capital changes 
Changes in working capital 

Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables 
Decrease/ (increase) io other non current assets 
Decrease/ (increase) in other current assets 
Decrease / (increase) in inventories 
Increase/ (decrease) in other current liabilities 
Increase / (decrease) in other long term provisions 
Increase / (decrease) in short term provisions 
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables 

Cash generated from operations 
Net income tax paid 

Net cash generated from operating activities 

B. Cash flow from investing activities 
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment including capital 
Capital expenditure on right to use asset 
Purchase of non-current investments 
Purchase of non-current investments 

Net cash used in investing activities 

C Cash flow from financing activities 
Repayment of lease liability (including interest thereon) 
Interest paid 
Dividend aid 

Net cash used in financing activities 

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 
Figures in brackets indicates outflow. 

31 March 2024 
MAU. Rs 

(98,340,551) 

315,890 
4,508 

(98,020,153) 

52,113,646 
77,533 

(106,345,935) 
214,939,405 
(10,638,171) 

(124,782,157) 
(72,655,832) 

(14 1, 156) 
(72,796,988) 

5,448,500 

(4,508) 

(4,508) 

(67,352,996) 

135,454,021 
68,101,025 

31 March 2023 
MAU.Rs 

(43,765,287) 

1,339,188 
14,270 

(42,411,829) 

71,955,286 
678, 155 
524,677 

198,324,279 
(69,249,554) 

( 127,912,067) 
31,908,947 

2,627,965 
34,536,913 

(313,686) 
(581,974) 

27,029,970 

393,743 
(14,270) 

379,473 

61,946,356 

73,507,665 
135,454,021 

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under 'fndirect Method' as set out in Accounting Standard 7 ([nd AS• 7) 
"Statement of Cash Flow" under Section I 33 of the Companies Act 2013. 

2. Cash comprises cash on hand, current accounts and deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are sholrt-term balances (with an original 
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition). 

Significant accounting policies 
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 
As per our report of even date attached 

In terms of our report attached 
For G. R. Modi & Co. 

;! ,..{ M. NO. 
a n 1 • . '\ 107574 

Partner , J 
'. ~·, ' 

Mumbai, 29 Apr, 2024 • " 
UDIN : ~, ·:-: 90 A 

2-4lo'f1'+YBKA X 2~90 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 
Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited 

tor 
Mumbai, 29 Apr, 2024 



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 3 I March 2024 

(Currency: MUR) 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Authorised : 
Issued : 
Subscribed & Paid up: 

B. Other E uity 
Particulars 

As at 1 April 2022 
Profit for the period 
Other com rehensive income 
Total comprehensive income 
Transfer to General reserve 
Dividend Paid 
At 31 March 2023 
Profit for the period 
Other com rehensi ve income 
Total comprehensive income 
Dividend Paid 
At 31 March 2024 

Balance as at 
01 April 2023 

100,000,000 
61,379,100 
61,379,100 

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve 

Changes in Restated 
Equity Share balance at the 
Capital due beginning of the 

to prior current 
period errors reporting period 

Securities 
J>remium 
Account 

100,000,000.00 
61,379,100.00 
61,379,100.00 

General 
Reserve 

380, 192,756 

380 192 756 

380 192 756 

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 

In terms ofour report attached 
For G. R. Modi & Co. 

Mumbai, 29 Apr, 2024 

UDIN : 2. '--1 I o -=t 5 ::J- 4 B 

Changes in 
equity share 

capital during 
the year 

Share Based 
Payment 
Reserve 

MUR 

Balance as at 31 
March 2024 

100,000,000 
61,379,100 
61,379, 100 

Retained 
Earnings 

189,158,878 
(41,137,321) 

(41,137,321) 

148 021 556 
(98,481 ,707) 

(98,481,707) 

49 539 849 

Foreign Other items of other 
Currency comprehensive 

Translation income 
Reserve 

Total Non- Total Equity 
Controlling 

Interests 

569,351,634 569,351,634 
(41,137,321) (41,137,321) 

(41,137,321) (41,137,321) 

528,214 313 528 214 313 
(98,481,707) (98,481,707) 

(98,481,707) (98,481,707) 

429 732 606 429 732 606 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 
Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited 



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

1. Corporate Information 

Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Ltd. is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in 
Mauritius and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India. The address of its 
registered office is located at First Floor, Garage Hi-Tech Building, Eau Partage, Pamplemousses 
Mauritius, 121011. The Consolidated Financial statement ("CFS") comprises the Company and its 
subsidiary (referred to collectively as the "Group"). 

The Group is primarily involved in manufacturing and marketing of speciality pharmaceutical 
finished dosages. 

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 have been reviewed by 
the Audit Committee and subsequently approved by Company's Board of Directors at its meeting 
held on 29 April 2024. 

2. Basis of Preparation 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in all material aspects in accordance 
with the recognition & measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards 
(hereinafter refetTed to as the ' Ind AS') read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. 

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost 
basis, except otherwise stated. 

3. Basis of Consolidation 

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statement of the Company and its 
wholly owned subsidiary Ajanta Pharma Mauritius (lnt' I) Ltd. The financial statements of the 
Company and its wholly owned subsidiary have been consolidated on a line by line basis by adding 
together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses after eliminating 
intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and unrealised profits resulting there from and are 
presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Group's independent financial 
statements. The statement of profit and loss and each component of other comprehensive income are 
attributed to the equity holders of the Company. 

These consolidated financial statements of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary have been 
consolidated using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar 
circumstances. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to 
bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies. The financial 
statements of the subsidiaries used in consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as that 
of the Company i.e., year ended 31 March 2024. 

4. Functional and Presentation Currency: 

Functional Currency of the Company is Mauritian Rupee (MUR). 

5. Rounding of Amounts 

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest 
crores. 



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

6. Current/ non-current classification: 

The assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are presented based on current/non-current 
classification. 

An asset is current when it is: 
• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or 
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 

least twelve months after the reporting period. 
All other assets are classified as Non-Current. 

A liability is current when it is: 
• Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or 
• Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 

after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result 
in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. 
All other liabilities are treated as Non-Current. 

Operating Cycle 
An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation 
in cash or cash equivalents. 

Based on the nature of products / activities of the group and the normal time between acquisition of 
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the group has determined its operating cycle 
as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current. 

7. Significant Accounting Policies 

7.1 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes 
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included 
in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset as appropriate, only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost of assets, to their residual 
values over their estimated useful life as follows: 

Particulars Useful Life 
Leasehold Imorovement 20 vears 
Furniture Fixtures & Fittings 2 to 6 years 
Office Eouioments 2 to 4 vears 
Plant & Machinery 5 to 20 years 
Motor Vehicles 5 vears 

asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at eac 
rting period. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated rec 



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals of 
property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are 
included in the statement of profit or loss. 

7.2 Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Financial Assets 

Classification 

The Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through 
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business model 
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial asset. 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not 
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition 
of the financial asset. 

Subsequent measurement 

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories: 
• Financial assets at fair value (FVTPL / FVTOCI) 
• Financial assets at amortised cost 
When assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive 
income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)). 

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for impairment, if any) 

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business model, whose 
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such 
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) 
method less impairment, if any. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement 
of profit and loss. 

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income ("FVTOCl") 

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair 
value, when asset is held within a business model, whose objective is to hold assets for both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized 
in the other comprehensive income. 

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss ("FVTPL") 

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair 
value with all changes recognised in profit or loss. 



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

Investment in Equity Instruments 

Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. All other equity 
instruments are classified as FVTOCI. Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, 
are recognised in the other comprehensive income. There is no recycling of the amounts from other 
comprehensive income to profit or loss. 

Investment in Debt Instruments 

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI. Any debt instrument, which does 
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss. 

Derecognition of Financial Assets 

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have 
expired or the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset. 

Impairment of Financial Assets 

In accordance with Ind - AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for 
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instruments 
and trade receivables. 

Financial Liabilities 

Classification 

The Group classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amo1tised cost or FVTPL. 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent measurement 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading 
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognised as we11 as through EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated 
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition 
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 

Derivative Financial Instrument 

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to mitigate its 
foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on 
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair 
value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial 
liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

7.3 Inventories 

Raw materials and packing materials are valued at lower of cost (on moving weighted average basis) 
and net realisable value, cost of which includes duties and taxes. Cost of imported raw materials and 
packing materials lying in bonded warehouse includes the amount of customs duty. Finished 
products including traded goods and work-in-progress are valued at lower of cost and net realisable 
value. Cost is arrived on weighted average basis. 

The cost of Inventories has been computed to include all cost of purchases, cost of conversion, 
appropriate share of fixed production overheads based on normal operating capacity and other 
related cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the 
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses necessary to make the sale. 

Slow and non-moving material, products nearing expiry, defective inventory are fully provided for 
and valued at net realisable value. 

Goods and materials in transit are valued at actual cost incurred up to the date of balance sheet. 
Materials and other items held for use in production of inventories are not written down, if the 
finished products in which they will be used are expected to be sold at or above cost. 

7.4 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed 
deposit/highly liquid investments with original maturity period of three months or less that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short­
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an 
integral part of the group's cash management. 

7.5 Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the 
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash 
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash 
flows. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated. 

7.6 Foreign Currency Transactions 

Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate 
prevailing on the date of the transaction. 



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are re-measured at the exchange 
rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost. 

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on restatement is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

7.7 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue recognition under Ind AS 115 (applicable from 1 April 2018) 

Under Ind AS 115, the group recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation was 
satisfied, i.e. when 'control' of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation were 
transferred to the customer. 

Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-Step Methodology which is as 
follows: 

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer 

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract 

Step 3: Determine the transaction price 

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract 

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation 

Sale of Goods 

The group applied Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective approach. 

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price adjusted for discounts and rebates, which is 
specified in a contract with customer. Revenue are net of estimated returns and taxes collected from 
customers. 

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control is transferred to the 
customer and it is probable that consideration will be collected. Control of goods is transferred upon 
the shipment of the goods to the customer or when goods is made available to the customer. 

The transaction price is documented on the sales invoic·e and payment is generally due as per agreed 
credit terms with customer. 

The consideration can be fixed or variable. Variable· consideration is only recognised when it is 
highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur. 

Sales return is variable consideration that is recognised and recorded based on historical experience, 
market conditions and provided for in the year of sale as reduction from revenue. The methodology 
and assumptions used to estimate returns are monitored and adjusted regularly in line with trade 
practices, historical trends, past experience and projected market conditions. 

Interest income 

_ .,.,,,....:.:_ 
• d with reference to the Effective Interest Rate method. 

Dividend 



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

Dividend from investment is recognised as revenue when right to receive is established. 

Income from Export Benefits and Other Incentives 

Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are accrued as revenue in the year in which the 
goods are exported and / or services are rendered only when there reasonable assurance that the 
conditions attached to them will be complied with, and the amounts will be received. 

7.8 Employee Benefits 

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering service are classified as 
short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, 
performance incentives etc. and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognised during the 
period in which the employee renders related service. 

(i) Defined contribution plans 
Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense when employees have 
rendered services entitling them to such benefits. 

The Group pays Social Security Cost as per local regulations. The Group has no further 
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted 
for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognized as employee benefit 
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent 
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available. 

For employees who are not covered by a pension plan, the net present value of severance 
allowances payable under the Employment Rights Act 2008 is provided for. The obligations 
arising under this item are not funded. 

(ii) Share-based compensation 
The Group has no share-based compensation plan. 

7.9 Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that 
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised 
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they 
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the 
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an 
adjustment to the borrowing costs. Transaction costs are charged to statement of profit and loss as 
financial expenses over the term of borrowing. 

7.10 Lease 

The Group's lease asset class primarily consists of leases for land and buildings. The Group assesses 
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if 
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset, the group assesses whether: ( 1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset 
(2) the group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period 
of the lease and (3) the group has the right to direct the use of the asset. 
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At the date of commencement of the lease, the group recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with 
a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and 
low value leases, the group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line 
basis over the term of the lease. 

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the 
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that 
they will be exercised. 

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the 
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the 
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the 
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for 
recoverability wl::enever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts 
may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the 
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset 
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other 
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to 
which the asset belongs. 

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease 
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the generally accepted interest rate. Lease 
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the 
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. 

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease 
payments have been classified as financing cash flows. 

Leases for which the group is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the 
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the 
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
relevant lease. 

Transition 
Effective 1 April, 2019, the group adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" and applied the standard to all lease 
contracts existing on l April, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the 
cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the 
group recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the 
generally accepted interest rate and the right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had 
been applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepted 
interest rate at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 3 I, 
2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the 
accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report for year ended March 31, 2019. 

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of 
MUR 6,593,744 and a lease liability of MUR 6,593,744. The cumulative effect of applying the 

~=~-•ft ard, amounting to MUR Nil was debited to retained earnings, net of ta ·s 

ion is insignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period and ear ::'~~=•=~~•
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116 will result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash 
outflows from financing activities on account of lease payments. 

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application: 

a. Applied a single discount rate to a po1ifolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic 
environment with a similar end date. 

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less 
than 12 months oflease term on the date of initial application. 

c. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of 
initial application. 

d. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. 
Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases 
under Ind AS 17. 

The interest rate applied to lease liabilities as at I April, 2019 is 7%. 

7.11 Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity 
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the 
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for 
deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that 
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential 
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at 
fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, 
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each 
period presented. 

7.12 lncome Taxes 

[ncome tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. 

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent 
that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other 
comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount 
expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the respective Country 's tax rates 
and tax laws that have been enacted by the balance sheet date. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences ansmg 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. 
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each repmiing date and are reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance 
sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amow1ts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using respective Country's tax rates and tax 
Jaws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet d =---- --...: ected to 
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apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be 
recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is 
recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive 
enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future 
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can 
be utilized. The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally 
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net 
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Deferred income taxes are not provided on the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries where it is 
expected that the earnings of the subsidiary will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. 

7.13 Dividends to Shareholders 

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which 
the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on 
approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable is recognised directly in equity. 

7.14 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments 

General 
Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. 

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted to its 
present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the 
balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates. 

lfthere is any expectation that some or all of the provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursement is 
recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense 
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any virtually certain 
reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax 
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of: 
• A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of 

resources will be required to settle the obligation; 
• A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimates is possible; 
• A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is 

remote. 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statements. 

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) 
~~--,__,i--,J·'!'!:"""·--~i ~~ion of assets and Non-cancellable operating lease. 

~A~ ~~~ 
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Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance 
sheet date. 

Asset Retirement Obligation 
Asset retirement obligations (ARO) are provided for those operating lease arrangements where the 
Company has a binding obligation at the end of the lease period to restore the leased premises in a 
condition similar to inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs to 
settle the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of that 
particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific 
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised in the income 
statement as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually 
and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are 
added to or deducted from the cost of the asset. 

7.15 Fair value measurement 

The Group measures :financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet 
date in accordance with Ind AS 113. 

Financials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following 
material items in the statement of financial position: 
• Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value received from Bank. 
• Mutual Funds are measured at fair values as per Net Asset Value (NA V). 
• Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Valuation Report. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or settle a liability in an ordinary 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic 
best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
• Level l - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 
• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is unobservable. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole) at the end of each reporting period. -

-~ 
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For the purpose of fair value djscJosures, the company has determined classes of assets and 
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of 
the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

7.16 Recent accounting pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing 
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from 1 April 2023. 

7.17 Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, 
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities in future periods. 

(a) Arrangement containing lease 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

At the inception of an arrangement, the Group detennines whether the arrangement is or 
contains a lease. At the inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease, 
the Group separates payments and other consideration required by the arrangement into 
those for the lease and those for the other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. 

The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the 
arrangements that such contracts are in the nature of operating leases. 

Multiple element contracts with vendors 
The Group has entered into multiple element contracts with vendors for supply of goods and 
rendering of services. The consideration paid is/may be determined independent of the value 
of supplies received and services availed. Accordingly, the supplies and services are 
accounted for based on their relative fair values to the overall consideration. The supplies 
with finite life under the contracts (as defined in the significant accounting policies) have 
been accounted under Property, Plant and Equipment and/or as Intangible assets, since the 
Group has economic ownership in these assets. The Group believes that the current 
treatment represents the substance of the arrangement. 

Determination of functional currency 
Each entity in the group determines its own functional currency (the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the entity operates) and items included in the financial 
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Ind AS 21, "The 
Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates" prescribes the factors to be considered for 
the purpose of determination of functional currency. Management uses its judgement to 
determine the functional currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the 
underlying transactions, events and conditions. 

Property, Plant and equipment 
Detennination of the estimated useful life of tangible assets and the assessment as to which 
components of the cost may be capitalized. Useful life of tangible assets is based on the life 
of useful lives/rates prescribed by the GAAPs of the respective countries. Assumptions also 
need to be made, when the Company assesses, whether an asset ~)LY\" b,~,i,;y~ta, ised and 
which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalised. t~1/ ;,,~t 
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(e) Intangible Assets 
Internal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets. 
Management believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable. 

(f) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations 
The obligation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial 
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation 
and vested future benefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is detennined with 
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on the government bonds. The 
period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post­
employment benefit obligations. 

(g) Recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax 
Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent 
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary difference can be utilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be 
available while recognising deferred tax assets. 

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and 
deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the 
carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual 
outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial 
statements. 

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the 
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business 
relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, 
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes 
to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already 
recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible 
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective countries in which it operates. 
The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous 
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the 
responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of 
issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective country. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant 
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can 
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, future tax 
planning strategies and recent business performances and developments. 

(h) Recognition and measurement of other provisions 
The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the 
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at 
the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary 
from the figure included in other provisions. 

(i) Contingencies 
Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, 
in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Group as it is not possible to predict 
the outcome of pending matters with accuracy. 

:::----7 -
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(j) Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances 
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by 
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are 
written off when management seems them not collectible. Impairment is made on the 
expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected 
life of the fmancial assets. 

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption about risk of default 
and expected loss rates. Judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to 
the impairment calculation are based on past history, existing market condition as well as 
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 

(k) Insurance claims 
Insurance claims are recognised when the Group has reasonable certainty of recovery. 

(I) Impairment reviews 
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit ('CGU') 
exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs 
to sell and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow 
model. In calculating the value in use, certain assumptions are required to be made in 
respect of highly uncertain matters, including management's expectations of growth in 
EBITDA, long term growth rates; and the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks 
involved. 
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8.1 
Property, Plant and Equipment 
Current Ye1,r 

(B) 

Particulars 

Property, Plant & Equipment 

Leasehold improvement 
Plant & Machinety 

Furniture & fixture 
Office Equipment 

Vehicles 
Computers 

Total 
Previous Year 
Other Jntongible Assets 
Right to use 

Total 

Previous Year 
Total Fixed Assets 

10757 ~, ...... 
$'~ 

, :::;;:· ::::,,.;.;:,::;;;;,,---

01 April 2023 

-

227,026 

86,660 
4,725,521 

5,039,207 

132,7 I 5,589 

7,175,718 

7,175,718 
6,593,744 

Gross Block (Cost Or Deemed Cost) 
Additions Disposals Adjustments 31 March 2024 

-
-

227,026 
86,660 

690,000 4,035,521 

- 690,000 - 4,349,207 
313,686 127,990,067 - 5.039,207 

7,175,718 
7, 175,718 

581,974 - 7,175,718 

INMUR 

Accumulated Depreciation/Am011isation Net Block 
0 I April 2023 For the Disposals Adjustments 31 March 2024 3 I March 2024 31 Mar2023 

Year 

- -
- -

5,676 34,054 39,730 187,296 221,350 
5,415 21,665 27,080 59,580 8 1,245 

2,527,)44 260, 171 241 ,500 2,545,815 1,489,706 2,198,377 

-
2,538,235 315,890 241,500 - 2,612,625 1,736,582 2,500,972 

96,457,475 1,145.1 97 95,064,437 2,538,235 2,500,972 36,258, 113 

6,787,735 6,787,735 387,983 387,983 
6,787,735 - 6,787,735 387,983 387,983 
6,593,744 193,991 6,787,735 387,983 (0) 

2,124,565 2,888,955 
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(Currency'. MUR) 

9 Asset held for sale (Non current) 

Asset held for sale 

IO Other Non-Current Financial Assets 
(Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated) 

Security Deposits 

11 Inventories 
Finished goods 

Stock-in-trade 
Clearing Charges of Uzbek Inventory 

12 Trade Receivables 
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated 

-Considered good 

13 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash on Hand 

Balance with Banks - In current accounts 

14 Other Current Assets 
Advances to to related parties 

Balance with Statutory/Govt. Authorities 

15 Equity Share Capital 

Authorised : 
Ordinary Shares of MUR LOO each 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up : 
Ordinary Shares ofMUR 100 each fully paid up 

31 March 2024 
Number of Shares 

31 March 2024 

MAU.Rs 

401 ,634 
401,634 

146,297,170 
40,133 

146,337,303 

173,246, I I 6 
173,246,116 

25,458 

68,075,569 
68,101,027 

100,7 17,830 
5,698,709 

106,416,539 

31 March 2024 
MAU. Rs 

1,000,000 _ __ 1 o_o~,o_o~o,~oo_o_ 

613,791 61,379,100 

(a) Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year: 
31 March 2024 31 March 2024 

Number of Shares MAU. Rs 

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares 

31 March 2023 
MAU.Rs 

5,000,000 

5,000,000 

479,167 
479,167 

565,362 

309,755,333 

50,956,013 
361,276,708 

225,359,762 
225,359,762 

25,459 

135,428,564 
135,454,023 

70,604 

70,604 

31 March 2023 31 March 2023 
Number of Shares MAU. Rs 

1,000,000 100,000,000 

613,791 61 ,379,100 

31 March 2023 31 March 2023 
Number of Shares MAU.Rs 

613,791 61,379,100 
613,791 61,379,100 

The company has issued only one class of ordinary shares with voting rights having a par value of MUR I 00 per share. 
During the year ended 3 1 March 2020, amount per share of dividend recognised as distributions to equity shareholders was MUR 71 J .28 per equity sh 
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company. The distribution wi 
of equity shares held by shareholders. 
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(Currency: MUR) 

(c) Details of equity shareholders holding more than 5% 
Name of Shareholder 31 March 2024 

Number of Shares 
Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India 613,791 

(d) Shares reserved for issue under options N il 

16 OTHER EQUITY 
General Reserve 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Add : Transferred from Statement of Profit & Losi 

Exchange Fluctuation Reserve 

Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
Balance at the beginning of the yeru 
Profit for the year 

Balance at the year end 
Total Other Equity 

17 Lease liability 
Lease liability 

18 TRADE PAYABLES 
Trade Payables to related parties 

19 Other Current Liabilities 
Other Payables 

20 Revenue from Operations 
Sale of Products 

Finished Goods 
Stock-in-Trade 

21 Other Income 
Exchange Difference (Net) 
Gain from Mutual Fund Investment 
Miscellaneous Income 

22 Purchase of Stock-in-T rade (Related Party) 
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade (Others) 

'~ 
·~ ">.':;. 

'-.;;.~=,:;;;;,.,.. 

31 March 2024 
MAU.Rs 

3 I March 2024 

100.00 

Nil 

380,192,756 

380,192,756 

148,021,556 
(98,481,707) 
49,539,849 

429,732,606 

393,743 

393,743 

5,121 ,735 

5,121,735 

1,742,891 
335,336,077 
337,078,968 

162,890 
162,890 

61,100,513 
3,354,818 

31 March 2023 
Number of Shares 

613,791 

Nil 

2 

31 March 2023 

MAU. Rs 

31 March 2023 
% Holding 

100.00 

Nil 

380,192,756 

380,192,756 

189,158,878 
(41,137,321) 
148,02 I ,556 
528,214,313 

393,743 
393,743 

124,782,157 
124,782,157 

15,759,907 

15,759,907 

63,149,796 

582,922,484 
646,072,280 

(12,462,145) 

18,291,227 

5,829,082 

280,278,729 
21,023,952 

\'l,\)-. MAU,?'l'. 
'(;.. 

RITIUS 
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(Currency: MUR) 

23 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 

Inventories at the end of the year : 
Work-in-Process 
Finished Goods 

Stock-in-trade 

lnventories at the beginning of the year : 
Work-in-Process 
Finished Goods 

Stock-in-trade 

Effect of foreign exchange translation 
Work-in-progress 
Finished goods 

Stock-in-trade 

(A) 

(B) 

(C) 

31 March 2024 

MAU. Rs 

146,337,303 

146,337,303 

565,362 
360,711,346 

361,276,708 

Total changes in Inven.tories of Finished Goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade: 
Work-in-Process 
Finished Goods 

Stock-in-Trade 

Total changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-pr (B) - (A)+ (C) 

24 Empolyee Benefit Expenses 

Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Allowances 
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 

Staff Welfare Expenses 

25 Finance Cost 
On lease liability 

26 Depreciation 

Depreciation of Tangible Assets (Refer note 8) 

27 Other Expenses 
Selling Expenses 
Clearing and Forwarding 
Travelling Expenses 
Power and Fuel 

Rent 
Telephone, Telex & Postage 
Repairs to Machinery 

Insurance 
Exchange Difference (Net) 
Impairment loss on Financial Assets 

Loss on sale/discard of property, plant and equipment (net) 

Miscellaneous Expenses 

565,362 

214,374,043 
214,939,405 

36,383,654 
50,686 

36,434,340 

4,508 
4,508 

315,890 
315,890 

69,146,536 
679,801 

16,968 

11 ,436,844 

89,449 

84,578 

14,519,965 

23,458,794 
119,432,935 

31 March 2023 

MAO.Rs 

565,362 
360,711,346 

361,276,708 

13,013,763 
546,587 224 

559,600,987 

12,448,401 

185,875,878 
198,324,279 

37,563,636 
199,513 

~22,263) 
37,740,886 

14,270 
14,270 

1,339,188 
1,339,188 

98,149,709 
2,814,898 

458,605 

181,688 
8,194,823 

331,360 
66,03 1 

38 1,166 

26,822,421 
19,544,644 

I 56,945,345 
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28. Capital Management 

29. 

Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market 
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return (EBIT) 
on capital, as well as the level of dividends to equity shareholders. Position. The Group's objective for 
capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and support the 
growth of the Group. The Group determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans 
and long-term and other strategic investment plans. 

Group monitors capital using a ratio of 'adjusted net debt' to 'adjusted equity'. For this purpose, 
adjusted net debt is defined as debt less cash and cash equivalents and current investments. Adjusted 
equity comprises all components of equity. 

Group' s policy is to keep the Net debt equity ratio below 1.00 and its adjusted net debt to equity ratio 
at 31 March 2024 was as follows. 

MUR 
Particulars 31 March 2024 

Debt 

Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 68,101,027 
Net Debt A (68,101,027) 
Equity B 491,I i l ,706 
Net Debt to Equity ratio A/B NIA 

Earnings Per share (EPS): 

The numerator and denominator used to calculate Basic and Diluted Eamin!!S per Share: 

Particulars 

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share: 

Profit attributable to Equity shareholders- for Basic 
EPS (MUR) 
Add: Dilutive effect on profit (MUR) 

Profit attributable to Equity shareholders for 
computing Diluted EPS (MUR) 
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 
outstanding - for Basic EPS 
Add: Dilutive effect of option outstanding- Number of 
Equity Shares 
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for 
Diluted EPS 
Face Value per Equity Share (MUR) 

Basic Earuings Per Share (MUR) 

Diluted Earnings Per Shares (MUR) 

A 

B 

C=A-B 

D 

E 

F=D+E 

AID 
C/F 

31 March 2024 

(98,481,707) 

(98,481,707) 

613,791 

6 13,791 

100 

(160.45) 

(160.45) 

31 March 2023 

135,454,023 

(135,454,023) 

590,093,413 

NIA 

31 March 2023 

(41,137,321) 

(41 ,137,321) 

613,791 

613,791 

100 

(67.02) 

(67.02) 

30. Employee Benefits 
As required by Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits', the Group offers its employees Social Security Cost 
and Severance Allowance. During the year, the Group has recognised the following amounts in the 
account: 

Social Security Cost 

Total 

Particulars 31 March 2024 

202,766 

MUR 
31 March 2023 

199,513 
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For employees who are not covered by a pension plan, the net present value of severance allowances 
payable is provided for under the Employment Rights Act. It has been assumed that the rate of future 
salary increases will be equal to the discount rate. 

31. Financial Instrument -fair values and risk management 

Fair value measurements 

Financial Instruments by category 

Financial Assets 

Trade Receivables 

Other Non-Current Financial Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Total Financial Assets 

Financial Liabilities 

Non-current Lease Liability 

Other Current Financial Liabilities 

Total Financial Liabilities 

31 March 2024 

FVTPL Amortised Cost 

I 73,246,1 16 

401,634 

68,101,027 

241,748,777 

393,743 

5,121,735 

5,515,478 

Fair value measurement oflease liabilities is not required. 

MUR 
31 March 2023 

FVTPL Amortised Cost 

225,359,762 

479, 167 

135,454,023 

361,292,952 

393,743 

15,759,907 

16,153,650 

Level I - The hierarchy in level 1 includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This 
includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NA V. 

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (like Mark to 
Market Derivative and Non-convertible Debentures) is determined using valuation techniques which 
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If 
all significant inputs required to fair value as instrument are observable, the instrument is included in 
level 2. 

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the 
instrument is included in level 3. 

A. Financial risk management 
Group has exposure to following risks arising from financial instruments: 
• Credit risk 
• Liquidity risk 
• Market risk 
• Currency risk 

Risk management framework 
Group's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 
Company's risk management framework. Management is responsible for developing and monitoring 
the Company' s risk management policies, under the guidance of Audit Committee. 

Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by it, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management 

olicies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions - -:~ 

0 ontrol environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. ~ 
ctivities. Group, through its training and procedures aims to maintain a discipline 

* M N 
Q, 10757 
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Group's Audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group's risk 
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in 
relation to the risks faced by the Group. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal 
audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and 
procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee. 

i. Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument 
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its 
operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including 
deposits with banks and mutual funds, foreign exchange transactions and other financial 
instruments. 

Impairment: 

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss 
for trade receivables: MUR 

31 March 2024 

Carrying amount Weighted average loss rate Loss allowance 

Not due 17,259,904 0% 

Past due upto 180 days 97,941,413 0% 

Past due 181-365 days 58,044,800 0% 

173,246,116 

31 March 2023 

Weighted average loss 
Carrying amount rate Loss allowance 

Not due 26,601,961 0% 

Past due upto 180 days 129,653,548 0% 

Past due 181-365 days 69,104,253 0% 

225,359,762 

a) Trade receivables 
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group's established 
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Trade receivables, 
which are non-interest bearing, are mainly from stockists, distributors and customers and are 
generally on 30 days to 270 days credit term. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly 
monitored. The Company has no concentration of credit risk as the customer base is widely 
distributed both economically and geographically. 

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major 
clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups 
and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on historical data. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of 
financial assets. The group does not hold collateral as security. The group evaluates the 
concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in 
several jurisdictions and operate in largely independent markets. 
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Expected credit Joss assessment 

The Group allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data that is 
determined to be predictive of the risk of loss (e.g. timeliness of payments, available press 
infonnation etc.) and applying experienced credit judgement. 

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting, period are reviewed by the 
Group to determine incurred and expected credit losses. Historical trends of impairment of 
trade receivables do not reflect any significant credit losses. Given that the macroeconomic 
indicators affecting customers of the Group have not undergone any substantial change, the 
Group expects the historical trend of minimal credit losses to continue. The trend of the bad 
debts is negligible. 

Gross Carrying amount 

Average Expected loss rate 

Carrying amount of trade receivables (net of impairment) 

31 March 2024 

173,246,116 

0.0% 

173,246,116 

MUR 

31 March 2023 

225,359,762 

0.0% 

225,359,762 

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as 

follows: MUR 

Balance as at the beginning of the year 

Impairment loss recognised (net) 
Amounts written off 

Balance as at the year end 

b) Financial instruments 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in liquid debt securities issued by 
mutual funds having a credit ranking of atleast 3 and above from CRISIL or equivalent rating 
agency. Company monitors changes in credit risk by tracking published external credit 
ranking. Based on its on-going assessment of counterparty risk, the Company adjusts its 
exposure to various counterparties. 

ii. Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to meet its present and future cash and 
collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Group's objective is to, at all 
times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Group 
closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains 
adequate sources of financing including bilateral loans, debt and overdraft from banks at an 
optimised cost. Working capital requirements are adequately addressed by internally generated 
funds. Trade receivables are kept within manageable levels. 

Group aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly marketable debt 
investments at an amount in excess of expected cash outflows on financial liabilities over the next 
six months. 

Exposure to liquidity risk 0~~'\. 
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilitief:at )lie reporting, ~te. 
The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the 
impact of netting agreements. '-=-1 .1,Ui ,1 1 

\\I., I ?-)J 
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iii. 

MUR 
As at 31 March 2024 Carrying Contractual Cash Flows 

Amount 
Total 0-12 1-2 2-5 More than S 

months years years years 

Trade payables 
current 

Lease liabilities 393,743 393,743 
Total 393,743 393,743 

As at 31 March Canying Contractual Cash Flows 
2023 Amount 

Total 0-12 1-2 2-5 More than 5 
months years years years 

Trade payables 
124,782,157 124,782,157 124,782,157 current 

Lease liabilities 393,743 393,743 393,743 

Total 125,175,900 125,175,900 124,782,157 393,743 

Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates 
and equity prices - will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial 
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk 
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. Financial instruments 
affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and derivative 
financial instruments. 

Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in 
foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Group uses derivative financial instruments 
such as foreign exchange contracts to manage its exposures to foreign exchange fluctuations . All 
such transactions are carried out within the guidelines set by the risk management committee. 

iv. Currency risk 
The Group is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies 
in which sales, purchases and borrowings are denominated and the respective currencies of the 
Group. The cuJTencies in which these transactions are primarily denominated are US Dollars, Emo 
and Mauritian Rupee. 

The Group does not have any policy to hedge against foreign currency exposure. In respect of 
other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Group's policy is to 
ensure that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at 
spot rates when necessary to address short-term imbalances. 

The following table analyses foreign currency risk as of 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023: 

Particulars 

Bank Balances 

Trade Receivables 

Other Current Assets 

Net Assets/ (Liabilities) 

31 March 2024 

68, 101,027 

173,246,116 

106,4 I 6,539 

494,627,184 

MUR 
31 March 2023 

135,454,023 

225,359,762 

70,604 

360,884,389 

~~ 
'.-~.,, 
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, every percentage point depreciation / 
appreciation in the exchange rate between the MUR and respective currencies has affected the Group's 
incremental profit before taxes per below: 

Year 
31 March 2024 

31 March 2023 

Change in currency exchange rate 
+5%/ (-5%) 

+5%/ (-5%) 

MUR 
Effect on profit before tax 

8,662,306 I (8,662,306) 

11,267,988 / (11,267,988) 

32. Note on foreign currency exposures on assets and liabilities: 

During the year, the Group has not entered into Forward Exchange Contract. The year-end foreign 
currency exposures that have not been mitigated by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as below: 

Particulars 

Amount Receivable 

a) Interest rate risk 

MUR Foreign Currency Foreign 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 Currency 

23,005,522 22,395,503 460,263 452,563 EURO 

71,559,315 

78,681,279 

106,720,417 

96,243,842 

1,542,759 2,348,084 

20,841 ,378,149 21,451,214,458 

USD 

uzs 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes 
in market interest rates is - as there are no borrowings in the Group. 

b) Price risk 
Group does not have any exposure to price risk, as there are no equity investments by group. 

33. Disclosure for operating leases under Ind AS 116 - "Leases": 

The Group have taken various premises under operating lease. These are generally cancellable and 
ranges from 11 months to 5 years and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms. 
Some of these lease agreements have price escalation clauses. There are no restrictions imposed by 
these lease arrangements and there are no sub leases. There are no contingent rents. Applied a single 
discount rate to a portfolio ofleases with reasonably similar characteristics. 

Right-of-use assets 

Cost 

Opening Balance 

Additions 

Disposals 

Closing Balance 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Opening Balance 

Depreciation 

Impairment loss 

Eliminated on disposals o 

Closing Balance 

~ ~lt,\h 

lAURITlll 

31 March 2024 

7,175,718 

7,175,718 

6,593,744 

6,593,744 

31 March 2023 

6,593,744 

581,974 

7,175,718 

6,593,744 

193,991 

6,787,735 
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Carrying amounts 

Gross 

Net 

Breakdown of lease expenses 

Short-term lease expense 

Low value lease expense 

Total lease expense 

Cash outflow on leases 

Repayment oflease liabilities 

Tota I cash outflow on leases 

Maturity analysis 

31 March 202-1 

Lease liabilities 

31 March 2023 

Lease liabilities 

31 March 2024 

7,175,718 

31 March 2024 
11,436,844 

11,436,844 

387,983 

31 March 2024 

Less than 1 year 

393,743 

393,743 

34. Contingent Liabilities and commitments: 

There are no contingent liabilities and commitments by the Group. 

31 March 2023 

7,175,718 

387,983 

31 March 2023 
8, 194,823 

8,194,823 

31 March 2023 

393,743 

393,743 

Over 1 years 

35. Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 are given below: 

A) Relationships: 
Category I - Holding Company 
Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India (Holding Company) 

Category II - Directors, Key Management Personnel & their Relatives: 
Mr. Vinayak Muzumdar Director (APML) 
Mr. Suttian Deerpaul Director (APML) 
& Relatives of Key Management Personnel 

-1,i7"T<. 
,. ' 
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36. 

37. 

B) Following transactions were carried out with related parties: 
C) MUR 

Sr. No. Particula1·s Category 31 March 2024 31 March 
2023 

1. Purchase of Goods: 

Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India 61,100,513 280,278,729 

2. Sale of Capital Goods: 

Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India 

2. Key Management Compensation: 

Short Term Employee Benefits 

Vinayak Muzumdar & Suttian Deerpaul u 2,542,812 4,420,7 11 

D) Amount outstandin2: as on 31 March 2024 MUR 
Sr. No. Particulars 

Trade Payables: 

Ajanta Phanna Ltd, India 

2. Advances: 

Ajanta Phanna Ltd, India 

Category 31 March 2024 

100,717,830 

Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility 
The oarticulars of CSR exoenditure are as follows: 

Sr. No. 

a. 

b. 

C. 

Particulars 

Construction/ acquisition of asset 

On purposes other than (a) above 

Shortfall at the end of the year 

d. Total of previous year shortfall 

Remuneration to Auditors: 
Particulars 

Audit Fees 

For Certification and Other Mauers 

31 March 2024 

31 March 2024 

108,097 

31 March 2023 

124,782,157 

MUR 
31 March 2023 

313,93 1 

MUR 
31 March 2023 

630,000 

240,861 

38. Additional disclosures required by Schedule III (amendments dated 24 March 
2021) to the Companies Act, 2013: 

A. Relationship with struck off company 

The Group has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or 
Companies Act, 1956. 

B. Undisclosed income 

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the 
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of 
account. 
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D. Details of benami property held 

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against The Group for holding benami 
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, I 988 ( 45 of 1988) and Rules made 
thereunder, 

E. Wilful defaulter 

The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority. 

F. Compliance with number of layers of companies 

The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

G. Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements 

The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on 
current or previous financial year. 

H. Details of crypto currency or virtual currency 

The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or 
previous year. 

I. Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium 

i. The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intennediary shall: 

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

11. The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that 
the Group shall: 

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

b. (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

39. Closure of wholly owned subsidiary: 

Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) International Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of the company, was removed 
from its register of companies u/s 308 of the Companies Act 2001 (Mauritius)vide its letter dated 27 
September 2022. 

40. Asset Held for Sale: 

In the previous year, the Company had entered into an arrangement for sale of its Leasehold 
improvements, Plant & Machinery, Furniture & Fixtures, Office equipment at BPML Building, Royal 
Road, Goodlands, Mauritius for a value of MUR 5 miliion,for which full advance was been received 
and recognised as part of other current liability, subject to fulfilment of certain conditions. Pending 
fulfilment of such conditions, the said investment was classified as Non-current asset held for sale in 
previous year. Transaction completed in the current financial year. 

-
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41. Previous year figures have been regrouped / re-classified wherever necessary, to confirm to current 
period's classification in order to comply with the requirements of the amended Schedule III to the 
Companies Act, 2013 effective from 01 April 2023. 

42. The Group has one segment of activity namely "Pharmaceuticals". 

In terms of our report attached 

For G. R. Modi & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
(!CAI FRN: 112617W) 

r 
i: Swapnil Modi ·, 

Partner • 

UDIN:2~10+5-+ ~~ 90 

Mumbai, 29 April 2024 

For and on behalf of Board of Directorsof 
Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited 

Director 
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Independent Auditor's Report 
To the Members of AJANTA PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC. 

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 
The accounts of AJANT A PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC. are being audited under the local laws 
of the country by the statutory auditor for the period 1st Jan 2023 to 31st December 2023. The 
company follows the period 1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024. In order to consolidate the 
accounts of AJANTA PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC. with that of the company, we have been 
appointed by the management of the company to audit the reinstated accounts of AJANTA 
PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC. for the period 1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024 under the 
companies Act in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS). 

Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of AJANTA 
PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC. ("the Company") comprising of the Standalone Balance Sheet 
as at 31st March 2024, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the Standalone Cash Flow Statement, the Standalone Statement of 
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements") prepared in accordance with group accounting policies followed by Ajanta Pharma 
Ltd. These Standalone financial statements have been prepared solely to enable Ajanta to 
prepare its consolidated financial statements. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and 
profit/loss, changes in equityand its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 



Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in fanning our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"') with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, 
(changes in equity) and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of 
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process in accordance with the group accounting policies followed by Ajanta. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor' s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the infonnation and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books 

( c) The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 



(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
"Annexure A". 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position; 

ii. The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. 
requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable 
losses; and 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred. to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

for G.R.Modi& Co 
Chartered Accountants 

stffltToh number: 112617W 

CA Swapnil Modi 
Partner 
Membership number: 107574 
Mumbai 

Date :29th April, 2024 

UDIN NO: 24107574BKASEZ3545 



Annexure - A to the Auditors' Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of AJANTA PHARMA 
PHILIPPfNES fNC. ('"the Company") as of 31st March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (' ICAl'). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance ote") 
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance ote require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor"s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fai rly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to pennit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company bas, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31st March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

for G.R.Modi& Co 
Chartered Accountants 

CA Swapnil Modi 
Partner 

number: 112 

Membership number: 107574 
Mumbai 

Date :29th April, 2024 

UDIN NO: 24107574BKASEZ3545 



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc. 

Balance Sheet 
as at J / March lOU 

(Currency PHP) 

Assets 

on-<:urrcnt assets 
Properly, plant and equipment 
Other intangible assets 
Right to use assets 
Financial assets 

Other financial assets 
Deferred tax assets (net) 

Current assets 
Inventories 
Financial assets 

Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Other current assets 

Total non-current assets 

Total current assets 

Total assets 

Equity and Liabilities 
Equity 

Equity share capital 
Other Equity 

Note 

7 
7 
7 

8 
9 

10 

II 
12 
13 

14 
15 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
PHP PIIP 

16,998,662 20,126,652 
300,590 295,980 

15,568,050 6,401,302 

2,466,243 70,393 
1,331,033 917,832 

36,664,578 27,812,158 

373,895,877 333,859,352 

553,546,271 504,944,939 
60,606,352 64,473,398 
28,139.126 41 ,392,119 

1,016,187,625 944,669,808 

1,052,852,203 972,481 ,966 

200,000,000 200.000,000 
350,107,128 393,857,944 

Total Equity _ ______ 5_50....:,_10'-7.:..,1_2_8 ___ 5-'-93:...:•c,;;85-'-7"-,9_44_ 
Liabilities 
Non current liabilities 

F1nanc1al liabilities 
Borro\\ings 

Lease hab1hty 
16 
17 

8,232,089 
4,075,523 3.315,253 

4,075,523 Tollll non-current liabilities _______ .....:.,.:..:..:: 11 ,547,342 

Current liabilities 
Financial hab1hues 

Trade payables 
Lease hab1hty 

Other current liab1hues 

18 
19 
20 

415,599,944 286.106,840 
10,042,224 1.194,607 
73,027,384 79,775,234 

498,669.552 Total current liabilities _______ ;,;,,,;c=.: 367,076,680 

Total equity and liabilities 

Significant accounting policies 

1,052,852,203 972,481 ,966 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

As per our report of even date anached 

In terms or our report attached 
For G. R. Modi & Co. 

Mumbai, 29 Apr, 2024 

For and on behalf or Board or Director, 
or Ajnnlll Pharma Philippines Inc. 

~~ 
Director 

Mumbai, 29 Apr, 2024 



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc. 

Statement of Profit and Loss Account 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(Currency: PHP) 

Income 
Revenue from operations 
Other income 

Total income 
Expenses 
Purchase of stock-in-trade 
Changes in inventories of finished goods/work-in-progress/stock-in-trade 
Employee benefits expenses 
Finance costs 
Depreciation & amonisation expense 
Other expenses 

Total expenses 
Profit before tu 

Tax expense 
Current tax 
Deffered tax 

Profit for the year 

There are no exceptional items and discontinuing operations. 
Earning Per Equity Share (Basic & Diluted) (Face Value PHPIOO/-) 

Significant accounting policies 
The notes referred to above form an integral pan of the consolidated financial statements 

As per our repon of even date attached 

In terms of our report attached 
For G. R. Modi & Co. 

Panner 
Mumbai, 29 Apr, 2024 

'otc 

21 
22 

23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 

30 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
PHP PHP 

I, 76 I ,956, 765 1,702,26 I, 167 
6,967,394 (211 ,652) 

1,768,924, I 59 1,702,049,514 

1,230,173,668 1,074,992,267 
(40,036,524) 59,186,722 
98,743,187 91 ,212,231 

712,648 888,398 
6,486,570 7,309,087 

304,512,932 249,714,186 
1,600,592,482 1,483,302,891 

168,331,677 218,746,623 

43,201,136 53,873,503 

(1 ,118,217) 1,029,424 

I 26,248,758 163,843,697 

63.12 81.92 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
of Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc. 

Rajesb M. Agrawal 
Director 

Mumbai, 29 Apr, 2024 



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc. 

Statement of C hanges in Equity 
for the y ear ended 31 March 2024 

(Currency PHP) 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Authorised : 
Issued : 
S ubscribed & Paid up: 

8. Other ui 
Par1icular.1 

As at I April 2022 
Profit for 1he period 
Other com rehcnsivc income 
Total comprehensive income 
Transfc, to Retained Earnings 
Dividend Paid 
At 3 1 March 2023 
Profit for lhe penod 
Other com rchensive income 
Total comprehens1ve mcome 

Transfer to Retained Earnings 
Dividend Paid 
At J I March 2024 

Balantr a.5 at 

01 April 2023 

200.000.000 
200.000,000 
200,000,000 

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve 

Changes in Restated balance 
Equity Sha re 
Capital du< to al the beginning 

or the current 
prior pe riod r eporting pc,riod 

c rron1 
200,000,000 
200,000,000 
200,000.000 

Sttu rit iH General Reservt 
Premium 
Account 

33,694,923 

33 694 923 

33,694 923 

Sec accompanying notes forming part or the financial stateme.nts 

In terms or our report altachtd 
For G. R. Modi & Co. 

PrutnCT 

Mumbai, 29 Apr, 2024 

UDINNO : 2~ IO :f-S =t-<-\BKA SE 7..J 54 S-

Chang.,. in 
equity shart 

capital d u ring 
the year 

ha re Ba,td 
Paym<nl 
Reserve 

PHP 

Balanct a, al JI 
Ma rch 2024 

200,000.000 
200,000,000 
200,000,000 

Retain«! 
Eaming,t 

446,319,325 
163,843,697 

163,843,697 

(250,000,000) 
360 163 022 
126,248,758 

126,248,758 

(1 69,999,575) 
3 16 412 205 

Foreign Other ittms or othtr 
C u rrir.ncy compre.heniivc 

Translation income 

Total On• Total Equity 
Contrulling 

Interests 

480,014,248 480,014,248 
163,843,697 163,843,697 

163,843,697 163,843,697 

(250,000,000) (250,000,000) 
393 857 944 393 857 944 
126,248,758 126,248,758 

126,248,758 126,248,758 

(I 69,999,575) (169,999,575) 
350 107 128 350 107 128 

For and on Mh1lf or Board or Directors or 
Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc. 

~ 
Rajesh M. Agrawal 

Director 

Mumbaj, 29 Apr, 2024 



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc. 

Statement of cashflow 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(Currency: PHP) 

ote : 

A. Cash now from operating activities 
Profit before tax 
Adjustment for 

Depreciation and amonisation expense 
Finance costs 

Expense on employee stock option scheme (esop} 
Receivable wrinen off 
Unrealised foreign exchange difference 

Operating cash flow before working capital changes 
Change in working capital 

Decrease / (increase) in trade receivable 
Decrease / (increase) in other non curent assets 
Decrease / (increase) in other current assets 
Decrease / (increase) in inventories 
Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities 
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 

Cash generated from operations 
Net income tax paid 

Net cash flow generated from operating activities 

B. Cash now from investing activities 
Capital expenditure on propeny, plant and equipment including capital 
Capital expenditure on right to use asset 
et cash used in investing activities 

C. Cash flow from financing acth•ities 
Repayment of non current borrowings 
Repayment of lease liability (including interest thereon) 
Interest paid 
Dividend paid 
el cash used in financing activities 

Net increase / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 
Figures in brackets indicates outflow. 

3 I March 2024 
PHP 

168,331,677 

6,486,570 
712,648 

175,530,895 

(48,601 ,332) 
{2,809,052) 
13,252,993 

(40,036,524) 
2,099,767 

129,493,105 
228,929,851 
(42,082,919) 
186,846,932 

(850,570) 
(13,121,429) 
(12,529,937) 

(8,232,089) 
760,271 

(712,648) 
(169,999,575) 
(178,184,041) 

(3,867,046) 

64,473,398 
60,606,352 

31 March 2023 
PHP 

218,746,623 

7,309,087 
888,398 

226,944,108 

(79,741 ,986) 
898,249 

( 16, I 95,552) 
59,186,722 
15,900,326 

216,312 
207,208,178 
(54,902,927) 
152,305,252 

(801,551) 
(3,209,821 ) 
(4,011,372) 

(3,009,253) 
(1,084,836) 

(888,398) 
(250,000,000) 
(254,982,487) 

( I 06,688,608) 

171 ,162,006 
64,473,398 

I The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under 'Indirect Method' as set out in Accounting Standard 7 (Ind AS - 7) 
"Statement of Cash Flow• under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013. 
2. Cash comprises cash on hand, current accounts and deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are sholn-terrn balances (with an original 
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition). 

Significant accounting policies 
The notes referred to above form an integral pan of the consolidated financial statements 
As per our repon of even date attached 

lo terms or our report attached 
For G. R. Modi & Co. 
Chartered Acco ua9ts 
(lCAl : 12 rlW) 

d 

Mumbai, 29 Apr, 2024 

UDIN NO: 2 ~ I O-::f-€+l\ 5Lt '5"" 

For and on behalf or Board or Directors or 
Ajanta Pharma Philippines In 

Rajesh M. Agrawal 
Director 

Mumbai, 29 Apr, 2024 



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc. 
otes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

1. Corporate Information 

Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc. is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in 
Philippines and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India. The address of its 
registered office is located at Unit 710, AXA Life Bldg., 1286, Sen. Gil Puyat Ave., Maka ti City, 
Philippines. 

Company is primarily involved in the business of pharmaceutical and related activities. 

The Financial Statement for the year ended 3 1 March 2024 have been reviewed by the Audit 
Committee and subsequently approved by Company's Board of Directors at its meeting held on 29 
April 2024. 

2. Basis of Preparation 

The financial statement of the Company has been prepared in all material aspects in accordance with 
the recognition & measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter 
referred to as the ' Ind AS') read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. 

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost basis, 
except otherwise stated. 

3. Functional and Presentation Currency: 

Functional currency of the Company is Philippine Peso (Php). 

4. Rounding of Amounts 

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest 
lacs. 

5. Current I Non-Current classification 

The assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are presented based on current/non-current 
classification. 

An asset is current when it is: 
• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or 
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 

least twelve months after the reporting period. 
ALI other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when it is: 
• Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or 
• Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result 
in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. 
All other liabilities are treated as non-current. 

Operating Cycle 
An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation 
in cash or cash equivalents. 

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Group and the normal time between acquisition of 
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has determined its operating cycle 
as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current. 

6. Significant Accounting Policies 

6.1 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost and are presented in the financial 
statements at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any accumulated impairment 
in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment at the 
time that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of day-to-day 
servicing. 

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties, 
taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location 
for its intended use. Cost also includes any related asset retirement obligation (ARO) and interest 
incurred during the construction period on funds borrowed to finance the construction of the 
projects. Expenditures incurred after the fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repairs 
and maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to deferred development cost in the 
period the cost are incurred. Major repairs are capitalized as part of property and equipment only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the Company 
and the cost of the items can be measured reliably. 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of assets, to their residual 
values over their estimated useful life as follows: 

Particulars Useful Life 
Condominium Units 20 years 
Furniture Fixtures & Fittings 2 years 
Office Equipments 2 years 
Computers 2 years 
Motor Vehicles 5 years 

The carrying amounts of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Fully 
depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further 
depreciation and amortization are recognized in profit or loss. 

An item of property and equipment is derecognized when either it has been disposed of or when it is 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its use or 
• osal. Any gain or loss arising on the retirement and disposal of an ite 

ment (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and th a~tAft~~ 
e asset) is included in profit or loss in the period of retirement or disposal. 



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

6.2 Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost and are subsequently measured at cost less 
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment loss. These are amortized over 
estimated useful life using the straight-line method. If there is an indication that there has been a 
significant change in amortization rate, useful life or residual value of an intangible asset, the 
amortization is revised prospectively to reflect the new expectations. 

Intangible assets are derecognized when these assets are disposed of or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from these assets. 

6.3 Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Financial Assets 

Classification 

Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through 
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business model 
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial asset 

Initial Recognition and Measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not 
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition 
of the financial asset. 

Subsequent Measurement 

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories: 
• Financial assets at fair value (FVTPL / FVTOCI) 
• Financial assets at amortised cost 
When assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive 
income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)). 

Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost (net of any write down for impairment, if any) 

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business model, whose 
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such 
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (ElR) 
method less impairment, if any. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement 
of profit and loss. 

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income ("FVTOCI") 

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair 
value, when asset is held within a business model, whose objective is to hold assets for both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized 
in the other comprehensive income. 

~ 'tJODt ,,r, 
(!-:· !+ 

:io % 
,I 
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss ("FVTPL") 

Financial assets under this category are measured initialJy as well as at each reporting date at fair 
value with all changes recognised in profit or loss. 

Investment in Equity Instruments 

Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. All other equity 
instruments are classified as FVTOCI. Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, 
are recognised in the other comprehensive income. There is no recycling of the amounts from other 
comprehensive income to profit or loss. 

Investment in Debt Instruments 

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI. Any debt instrument, which does 
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss. 

Derecognition of Financial Assets 

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have 
expired or Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset. 

Impairment of Financial Assets 

In accordance with Ind - AS 109, Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for 
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instruments 
and trade receivables. 

Financial Liabilities 

Classification 

Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. 

Initial Recognition and Measurement 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent Measurement 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading 
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. Amortised ~;t:8~~1ated 
by consid • discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that arypy...y-i:;,-<ll.lp of 
the EIR • ~1.>l.,l:>,8l11UL1rtisation is included as finance costs in the statement of p nd loss. ~ 
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender 
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such 
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the 
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Derivative Financial Instrument 

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to mitigate 
its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value 
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair 
value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial 
liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

6.4 Inventories 

Finished products including traded goods and work-in-progress are valued at lower of cost and net 
realisable value. Cost is arrived on weighted average basis. The cost of Inventories have been 
computed to include all cost of purchases, cost of conversion, appropriate share of fixed production 
overheads based on normal capacity and other related cost incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the 
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. 

Slow and non-moving material, products nearing expiry, defective inventory are fully provided for 
and valued at net realisable value. 

Goods in transit are valued at actual cost incurred up to the date of balance sheet. 

6.5 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed 
deposit/highly liquid investments with original maturity period of three months or less that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short­
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an 
integral part of the group's cash management. 

6.6 Cash Flow Statements 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjust~ for the 
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash 
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash 
flows. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are 
segregated. 



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

6.7 Foreign Currency Transactions 

Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate 
prevailing on the date of the transaction. 

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the ye_ar-end are re~measured at ~he exchange 
rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary foreign currency items are earned at cost. 

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on restatement is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

6.8 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue recognition under Ind AS 115 (applicable from I April 2018) 

Under Ind AS 115, the group recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation was 
satisfied, i.e. when 'control ' of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation were 
transferred to the customer. 

Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-Step Methodology which is as 
follows: 

Step I: Identify the contract(s) with a customer 

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract 

Step 3: Determine the transaction price 

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract 

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation 

Sale of Goods 

The group applied Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective approach. 

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price adjusted for discounts and rebates, which is 
specified in a contract with customer. Revenue are net of estimated returns and taxes collected from 
customers. 

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control is transferred to the 
customer and it is probable that consideration will be collected. Control of goods is transferred upon 
the shipment of the goods to the customer or when goods is made available to the customer. 

The transaction price is documented on the sales invoice and payment is generally due as per agreed 
credit terms with customer. 

The consideration can be fixed or variable. Variable consideration is only recognized when it is 
highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur. 

Sales return is variable consideration that is recognised and recorded based on historical experience, 
market conditions and provided for in the year of sale as reduction from revenue. The methodology 
and assumptions used to estimate returns are monitored and adjusted regular! -~~~~ de 
practices, historical trends, ast experience and projected market conditions. 

Interest income 



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

Interest income is recognised with reference to the Effective Interest Rate method. 

Dividend income 

Dividend from investment is recognised as revenue when right to receive is established. 

Income from Export Benefits and Other Incentives 

Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are accrued as revenue in the year in which the 
goods are exported and I or services are rendered only when there is reasonable assurance that the 
conditions attached to them will be complied with, and the amounts will be received. 

6.9 Employee Benefits 

Short-term Benefits - The Company recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an 
expense for services rendered by employees during the accounting period. Short-term benefits given 
by the Company to its employees include salaries and wages, social security contributions, short­
term compensated absences, bonuses and other non-monetary benefits. 

Post-Employment Benefits - The Company does not have a formal retirement benefit plan. 
However, the Company is subject to the provision of Republic Act No. 7641 (known as the 
Retirement Law). This requires that in the absence of a retirement plan of agreement providing for 
retirement benefits of employees in the private sector, an employee upon reaching the age of 60 
years or more, but not beyond 65 years, who has served for at least five (5) years in a private 
company, may retire and shall be entitled to retirement pay. No actuarial computation was made 
considering that there are no more than ten ( 10) employees who had served at least five years and 
the turnover of employees is high. 

Compensated Absences - Compensated absences arc recognized for the number of paid leave days 
(including holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of the reporting period. Those are included in 
the salaries and wages account and are recognized when availed of by the employees. 

Retirement and Other Long-term Benefits 
Retirement and other long-term benefits costs are actuarially determined using the projected unit 
credit method. This method reflects services rendered by employees up to the date of valuation and 
incorporates assumptions concerning employees' projected salaries. The calculation of defined 
benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary. When the calculation results in a 
potential asset for the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic 
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in the future 
contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given 
to any applicable minimum funding requirements. 

Re-measurements of the net retirement and other long-term employee benefits liability, which 
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of 
the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in OCI. The Company 
determines the net interest expense to measure the net retirement benefit liability (asset) on at the 
beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), considering any 
changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and 
benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are 
recognized in profit or loss. 

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit 
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or 
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loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the 
settlement occurs. 

The net retirement and other long-term benefits liability recognized by the Company is the aggregate 
of the present value of the defined benefit obligation reduced by the fair value of plan assets out of 
which the obligations are to be settled directly. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is 
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using risk-free interest rates of 
government bonds that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related retirement and 
other long-term benefits liability. 

Share-based compensation 
Company has no share-based compensation plan. 

6.10 Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs comprise interest expense on borrowings and other bank charges. Borrowing costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of 
the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs 
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the 
borrowing costs. Transaction costs are charged to statement of profit and loss as financial expenses 
over the term of borrowing. 

6.11 Lease 

• 
I 

The company's lease asset class primarily consists of leases for land and buildings. The Company 
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a 
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: ( 1) the contract involves the use of an identified 
asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through 
the period of the lease and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") 
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases 
with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term 
and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the 
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that 
they will be exercised. 

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the 
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the 
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the 
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for 
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their • 
may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverab 
hig value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on 
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basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other 
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to 
which the asset belongs. 

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease 
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the generally accepted interest rate. Lease 
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the 
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. 

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease 
payments have been classified as financing cash flows. 

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the 
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the 
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
relevant lease. 

Transition 
Effective I April, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" and applied the standard to all 
lease contracts existing on 1 April, 2019 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the 
cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the 
Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the 
generally accepted interest rate and the right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had 
been applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepted 
interest rate at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended 31 March, 
20 I 9 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the 
accounting policies included as part ofour Annual Report for year ended 31 March, 2019. 

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of PHP 
2,762,968 and a lease liability of PHP 2,88I,829. The cumulative effect of applying the standard, 
amounting to PHP 118,861 was debited to retained earnings, net of taxes. The effect of this adoption 
is insignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period and earnings per share. Ind AS 116 will 
result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from 
financing activities on account of lease payments. 

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application: 

a. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic 
environment with a similar end date. 

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less 
than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application. 

c. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of 
initial application. 

d. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. 
Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases 
under lnd AS 17. 

The interest rate applied to lease liabilities as at I April, 2019 is 6%. 



Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

6.12 Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity 
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the 
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for 
deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that 
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential 
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at 
fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, 
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each 
period presented. 

6.13 Income Taxes 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. 

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent 
that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other 
comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount 
expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the respective Country's tax rates 
and tax laws that have been enacted by the balance sheet date. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. 
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance 
sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using respective Country's tax rates and tax 
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to 
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be 
recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is 
recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive 
enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future 
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can 
be utilized. The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally 
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net 
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Deferred income taxes are not provided on the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries where it is 
expected that the earnings of the subsidiary will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. 

6.14 Dividends to Shareholders 

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which 
the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on 

appro :~~==~~..:: Directors. Dividend payable is recognised directly in equity. 
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6. 15 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments 

General 
Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. 

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted to its 
present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the 
balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates. 

If there is any expectation that some or all of the provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursement is 
recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense 
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any virtually certain 
reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax 
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

Contingent liabmty is disclosed in the case of: 
• A present obHgation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources 

will be required to settle the obligation; 
• A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimates is possible; 
• A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is 

remote. 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements. Contingent assets 
are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statements. 

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for 
completion of assets and Non-cancellable operating lease. 

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance 
sheet date. 

Asset Retirement Obligation 
Asset retirement obligations (ARO) are provided for those operating lease arrangements where the 
Company has a binding obligation at the end of the lease period to restore the leased premises in a 
condition similar to inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs to 
settle the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of that 
particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific 
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised in the income 
statement as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually 
and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are 
added to or deducted from the cost of the asset. 

6.16 Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet 
date in accordance with Ind AS 113. 

i . ~ 
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Financials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following 
material items in the statement of financial position: 
• Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value received from Bank. 
• Mutual Funds are measured at fair values as per Net Asset Value (NA V). 
• Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Valuation Report. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or settle a liability in an ordinary 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic 
best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset considers a market participant's abi lity to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market 
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
• Level l - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 
• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is unobservable. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re­
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and 
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of 
the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

6.17 Recent accounting pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing 
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from I April 2023. 

6.18 Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, 
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that • • 

e carrying amount of the assets or liabilities in future periods. 
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(a) Arrangement containing lease 
At the inception of an arrangement, the Company detennines whether the arrangement is or 
contains a lease. At the inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease, 
Company separates payments and other consideration required by the arrangement into 
those for the lease and those for the other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. 

The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the 
arrangements that such contracts are in the nature of operating leases. 

(b) Multiple element contracts with vendors 
The Company has entered into multiple element contracts with vendors for supply of goods 
and rendering of services. The consideration paid is/may be determined independent of the 
value of supplies received and services availed. Accordingly, the supplies and services are 
accounted for based on their relative fair values to the overall consideration. The supplies 
with finite life under the contracts (as defined in the significant accounting policies) have 
been accounted under Property, Plant and Equipment and/or as Intangible assets, since the 
Company has economic ownership in these assets. Company believes that the current 
treatment represents the substance of the arrangement. 

(c) Property, Plant and equipment 
Determination of the estimated useful life of tangible assets and the assessment as to which 
components of the cost may be capitalized. Useful life of tangible assets is based on the life 
of useful lives/rates prescribed by the GAAPs of the respective countries. Assumptions also 
need to be made, when the Company assesses, whether an asset may be capitalised and 
which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalised. 

(d) Intangible Assets 
Internal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets. 
Management believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable. 

(e) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations 
The obligation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial 
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation 
and vested future benefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is detennined with 
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on the government bonds. The 
period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post­
employment benefit obligations. 

(t) Recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax 
Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent 
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary difference can be utilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be 
available while recognising deferred tax assets. 

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and 
deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the 
carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual 
outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial 
statements. 

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the 
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business 
relationships and the long-tenn nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, 
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differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes 
to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already 
recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible 
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective countries in which it operates. 
The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous 
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the 
responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of 
issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective country. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant 
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can 
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, future tax 
planning strategies and recent business performances and developments. 

(g) Recognition and measurement of other provisions 
The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the 
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at 
the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary 
from the figure included in other provisions. 

(h) Contingencies 
Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, 
in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to 
predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy. 

(i) Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances 
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by 
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. individual trade receivables are 
written off when management seems them not collectible. Impairment is made on the 
expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected 
life of the financial assets. 

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption about risk of default 
and expected loss rates. Judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to 
the impairment calculation are based on past history, existing market condition as well as 
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 

(j) Insurance claims 
Insurance claims are recognised when the Company has reasonable certainty of recovery. 

(k) Impairment reviews 
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit ('CGU') 
exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs 
to sell and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow 
model. In calculating the value in use, certain assumptions are required to be made in 
respect of highly uncertain matters, including management's expectations of growth in 
EBITDA, long term growth rates; and the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks 
involved. 
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hrt.icul•n 

(a) Propcf'1y. Plaat and Equipment 
Lca&c.hold lmpro,-cmcnt 
Bu1kfot1s 
Plant & Mac.hmc:ry 
Fwn1turc &. fixbu'c 

Office Eqwpmcnl 
VchK:ks 
Comnutcn 
Total 
Prc,N>UJ Ycac 

(b) Od1cr latanS!,ibk Audi 

Right to USC 

Comoutcr Software 
Total 
Prc\<IOUI Year 
To<al (a)+ (bl 

Grou Blocl (Con 0,- Deemed Cos1' 
01 April 2023 Additions Disposals AdJu•uncnts 31 March 2024 

ll .791 21,791 
33.957.717 33.957.717 

2,160,014 19,474 2,179.418 
6,292.062 47.a .614 6,766,746 

46.4Sl ,114 46_4ll.114 (0) 
163 211 163,211 

39,7.a6,762 -&9.f,158 06.-151.lllO 43,719,106 
19,290.121 456.641 l9.746.762 

10.745,151 13.121 .429 30441,U7 20.421,460 
3.381902 316,412 3 741,314 

l.& ,I J.f,460 IJ ... 77.ll41 J ... 41,527 20. 170.77' 
I0.579,n9 3)54,731 14,134,460 

INPIIP 

Accumul•tcd Ornrcc111tt0n/AmortiutJon Net Block 
01 Apnl 2023 Forlhe D11p01aJs AdJustmcnu 3 1 March 2024 3 1 Mon,h 2024 31 M•202l 

v .. , 

l l .791 21.791 
15,757.909 1,697.119 17,455,791 16,501,919 11,199,171 

2,127,643 33.267 2.160,910 11)71 32,371 
5,144.911 443.662 6.211,650 471,096 447,074 

45.004,◄ll 432.711 4!1i,4J7.203 0 (0) 1.447,329 
163.281 163.211 (0) (0) 

69.610,110 2.607.537 45,437,203 26.790.4-10 16,991,661 20.126,652 
63.117.394 5 762.716 69.620,110 20.126,6)2 2.1.0 2,n1 

4.344,216 3)27,232 3,014,on 4.ll7,4IO 15.561.050 6.401.302 
3,092,922 311,102 3,444.724 JOO 590 295.910 
7.'37.173 J,1119,0~ 3,0U,077 A,J-02, IJ 5 15.l161,6J9 6.691,182 
5.190.101 1)46.371 7.437 171 6.697,212 4.6H 921 

JU67,J-01 26.llll,934 
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8 Other Non-Currtnt Fln1nci1I Asstu 

(Uns,cumJ. Considered Good unless 0thCTWISe Stiled) 
Sccunty Deposits 

9 Deferred Tu AssdJ (Ntt) 

Others 

IO lnvrntories 

Stock-in-trade 

11 Tradt Rtctiv1bles 

(Unsecured. Considered Good unless oth<rw15e sttted) 
-Considered good 

12 Cuh and cuh ,quiv1ltnu 

Cuh on Hand 

Balance with Banks • In current accounts 

ll Othtr Currtnt Asseu 

Advances to Supph<TS 
Advances 10 Employcts 

14 Equity Share Capital 

Authorised : 
Eqwty Shares of PHP 100 each 

ls.sued, Subscribed & Paid up : 
Eqwty Sharcs of PHP 100 each fully paid up 

JI March 2024 

Number of 
Shares 

2.000,000 

2.000.000 

(1) Rtconcili1tion of numbtr of ,quity shares ouU11nding 11 tht beginning and II the tnd of th-'•_,.Y.;..H_r_: __ _ 

JI March 2024 JI March 202J 
PHP PHP 

2,466.243 70.393 
l,466,24J 70,393 

1,331.033 917.832 
1,331,0JJ 917,832 

373,895,877 333,859.352 
373,895,877 333,859,352 

553,546.211 504,944,939 
553,546,271 504,944,939 

30,004 58.406 
60,576,348 64,414,992 
60,606,352 64,473,398 

25, 113,779 38,892.432 
3,025,347 2.499,686 

28,139,126 41,392,119 

JI March 2024 JI March 2023 JI March 2023 

l'iumbtr of 
PHP Shares PHP 

200,000.000 2,000,000 200,000,000 

200.000.000 2.000.000 200,000,000 

J I March 2024 JI March 2024 JI March 2023 JI March 2023 

Number of Number of 

Number of shares outstanding as II the beginning of the year 

Add Number of shares alloued as bonus dur ing the )"Car 
Less Number of shares bought back during the year 
Number of shares outsttnding as at the end of the year 

(b) Righu, preftrtn<ts and restrictions 1111chcd lo 1h1rts 

Shirts 

2,000,000 

2,000,000 

The company bas issued only one class of ordin:uy shares With vonng nghts having a par value of PHP 100 per share. 

PIIP Sh arts 

200.000.000 2,000,000 

200,000,000 2,000,000 

During th• year ended 31 March 2020, amount per share of dividend recognised as disrributions 10 ,quity shareholders was PHP 62.50 per equity share 
(31 March 2019 PHP 60.60 per equity shart) 

In the event of hquidanon of the company. the holdm of equity shares WIii be entitled to recci,-c rema,n,ng assets of the company. The disrribunon will 

be in proportion 10 the numbers of equity shares held by shareholders. 

(c) Dc11ils of ,quity shartholdtrs holding mort than 5% 

amt of Shareholder 31 Marth 2024 JI Marth 2024 JI Mirth 2023 

Number of Numbtr of 
Shuts % floldin& Sharts 

AJant.1 Phanna Ltd., India 2,000.000 100 00 2,000,000 

(d) Shares rtstn·cd for is.sut undtr options Nil Nil Nil 

PIIP 

200.000,000 

200,000,000 

JI March 2023 

% Holding 
10000 

Nil 
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J 1 March 2024 J 1 March 2023 
PIIP PHP 

15 OTHER EQUITY 
Genenl Resen,e 
Balanee at !he beginning oflhe year 33,694,923 33,69-1,923 
Add : Transferred from Statement of Profit & Loss 

J J ,694,923 J J,694,923 

Exchange fluctuation Reserve 

Surplus in lhe Statement or Proli t and Lou 
Balance at lhe beginning of lhe year 360.163,022 446,319,325 
Profit for lhe year 126.248, 758 163,843,697 
~ss: Appropriations 

-Dividend Paid on Equity Shares 169,999.575 250,000,000 
-Dividend Distribuuon Tax On Proposed 
-Transferred from retained earnings 
-Transferred 10 General Reserve 

Balanet 1 1 the year end 316,412,205 360,16J,022 
Total Other Equity 350,107,128 393,857,944 

16 Non-Curren! Borrowings 
Vehicle Lo101 (Secured) 

from Banks (PHP) 8,232,089 

8,232,089 

17 Lust liability 
Long Term 4.075,523 3.315,253 

4,075,513 3,31 5,253 

18 Trade Payables 
Trade Payables 10 Related Party 415,599.944 286, 106,840 

415,599,944 286, I 06,840 

19 LCIJC liability 
Short Term 10.042.224 I, 194,607 

10,~2,224 1,194,607 

20 Other Current Li1bili1ies 
Olhcrs payables 73,027,384 79,775,234 

73,027,384 79,775,234 

21 Revenue from Operations 
Sale of Producu 

Stock-in-Trade 1,761,956,765 1,702.261,167 

1,761,956,765 1,702,261,167 

22 OTHER INCOME 
E.tthange DifTcrrnce (Net) ( 1,875,265) 

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 
ln1ercs1 from Olhcrs 93,153 127,899 

Miscellaneous Income 6,874,241 1,535,714 

6.967,394 (211 ,652) 

23 Purchase or Stock-in-Trade 1,230,173,668 1,074,992,267 
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oles to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
as at 31 March 202-1 

(Currmcy: PHP) 

24 Changes in Inventories or FiniJhcd Good,, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trad• 
lnv<ntories at th< end or the year : 

Stock-in-trade 

lnv,ntories at the beginning or the yea r : 
Stock-in-trade 

Effect orroreign exchange translation 
Stock-in-trade 

Total changes in lnvtntoriu or Finished Good,, Work-in-progresJ and Stock-in-Trad• : 
Stock-in-trade 

Total changes in Inventories or Finished GoodJ, Work-in-progrCSJ and Stock-in-Trade 

25 Empolyte Bendit Expenses 
Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Allowances 
StalTWeJfart Expenses 

26 Financt Cost 
Interest expmscs 

27 Dtprtciation 
Depreciation ofTangible Assets (Refer note 4) 

28 Other Expen,es 
Selling Expmses 
Clearing and Forwarding 
Travelling Expenses 
Power and Fuel 
Rent 
Telephone, Ttlcx &. Postage 
Repaiis to Building 
Exchange Difl'm ncc (Net) 
Miscellaneous Expenses 

(A) 

(B) 

(B) - (A)+ (C) 

JI March 2024 

PHP 

373,895,877 

373,895,877 

333,859,352 

333,859,352 

(40,036,524) 
(40,036,524) 

1,190,137,144 

98,51 2,75 1 

230,437 

98,743,187 

712,648 

712,648 

6,486,570 

6,486,570 

105,893,078 

143,974,653 

18,510,378 

761,462 

3,387,758 

1,347,485 

174,410 

12,697,125 

17,766,585 

304,512,932 

JI March 2023 

PHP 

333,859,352 

333,859,352 

393,046,074 

393,046,074 

59,186,722 

59, 186,722 

I, I 34,178,989 

90,819,878 

392,353 

91,212,231 

888,398 
888,398 

7,309,087 

7,309,087 

78,169,402 

134,015,729 

18,017,076 

8 19. 788 

833,206 
1,336,978 

618,760 

15,903,248 

249,714, 186 
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29. Capital Management 

30. 

Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market 
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return (EBIT) 
on capital, as well as the level of dividends to equity shareholders. The Company's objective for 
capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and support the 
growth of the company. The company determines the capital requirement based on annual operating 
plans and long term and other strategic investment plans. 

Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'adjusted net debt' to 'adjusted equity'. For this purpose, 
adjusted net debt is defined as debt less cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments. 
Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity. 

Company's policy is to keep the ratio below 1.00 and its adjusted net debt to equity ratio at 31 March 
2024 was as follows. PHP 

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Debt 10,42,224 9,426,695 

Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 60,606,352 64,473,398 

Net Debt A (50,564,128) (55,046,703) 

Equity B 550,107,128 593,857,944 

Net Debt to Equity ratio A/8 -0.09 -0.09 

Earnings Per share (EPS): 

The numerator and denominator used to calculate Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share: 
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share: 

Profit attributable to Equity shareholders- for Basic EPS A 
(PHP) 
Add: Dilutive effect on profit (PHP) B 

Profit attributable to Equity shareholders for computing C=A-B 
Diluted EPS (PHP) 
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares outstanding - D 
for Basic EPS 
Add: Dilutive effect of option outstanding- Number of E 
Equity Shares 
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for Diluted F=D+E 
EPS 
Face Value per Equity Share (PHP) 

Basic Earnings Per Share (PHP) AID 

Diluted Earnings Per Shares (PHP) C/F 

126,248,758 

126,248,758 

2,000,000 

2,000,000 

100 

63.12 

63.12 

163,843,697 

163,843,697 

2,000,000 

2,000,000 

100 

81.92 

81.92 

31. Employee Benefits 

As required by Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits' ,the Company offers its employees: Short-term 
employee benefits - These benefits include salaries and wages and other government contributions 
which are due within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the 
related service. The total consideration paid in 2023-24 was PHP 98,743,187 (Previous Year PHP 
91 ,212,23 I). 

Retirement plan - The Company did not yet set up a retirement plan since it does not have more than 
ten ( I 0) employees who had served at least five years. Retirement expenses are recognized upon actual 
availingof qualified employees which will be determined by the Company based on the actual number 
of year Q1-lseflltre!Mll mpliance with RA No. 7641. No retirement costs were re 

{i 
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32. Financial Instrument- fair values and risk management 

Fair value measurements 

Financial Instruments by category 

Financial Assets 

Trade Receivables 

Other Non-Current Financial Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Total Financial Assets 

Financial Liabilities 

Borrowings 

Non-Current Lease Liability 

Other Current Financial Liabilities 

Trade Payables 

Total Financial Liabilities 

31 March 2024 

FVTPL Amortised Cost 

553,546,271 

2,466,243 

60,606,352 

6 I 6,618,866 

4,075,523 

83,069607 

415,599,944 

502,745,075 

Fair value measurement of lease liabilities is not required. 

PHP 
31 March 2023 

FVTPL Amortised Cost 

504,944,939 

70,393 

64,473,398 

569,488,729 

8,232,089 

3,315,253 

80,969,840 

286, 106,840 

378,624,022 

Level I - The hierarchy in level I includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This 
includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NA V. 

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (like Mark to 
Market derivative and Non-convertible Debentures) is determined using valuation techniques which 
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If 
all significant inputs required to fair value as instrument are observable, the instrument is included in 
level 2. 

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the 
instrument is included in level 3. 

A. Financial risk management 
Company has exposure to following risks arising from financial instruments: 
• Credit risk 
• Liquidity risk 
• Market risk 
• Currency risk 

Risk management framework 
Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 
Company's risk management framework. Management is responsible for developing and monitoring 
the Company's risk management policies, under the guidance of Audit Committee. 

Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by it, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management 
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's 
activities. Company, through its training and procedures aims to maintai a..-i~~~:d d 
conitr.m!bKc ol environment in which all employees understand their roles a 
~ v~· 
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Company's Audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's 
risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management 
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its 
oversight role by intemaJ audit. IntemaJ audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk 
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee. 

i. Credit risk 
Company's credit risk is minimaJ. The trade receivables arise mainly from transactions with its 
approved customers. The maximum exposure to credit on these transactions is equal to the 
carrying amount of these financial instruments. Customers are subject to stringent financial, credit 
and legal verification process. In addition, trade receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing 
basis to ensure timely collections. Accordingly, the Company's exposure to bad debts is not 
significant. 

Impairment: 
The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss 
for trade receivables: PHP 

31 March 2024 

Carrying amount Weighted average loss rate Loss allowance 

Not due 396,463,160 0% 

Past due upto 180 days 157,083,111 0% 

553,546,271 

31 March 2023 

Carrying amount Weighted average loss rate Loss allowanc.e 

Not due 456,711 ,295 0% 

Past due upto 180 days 48,233,644 0% 

504,944,939 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

Expected credit loss assessment 

The Group allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of ?ata that is 
determined to be predictive of the risk of loss (e.g. timeliness of payments, available press 
information etc.) and applying experienced credit judgement. 

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are re~iew~d by the 
Group to determine incurred and expected credit lo_sses. Histo~ical trends of 1mpa1rment ?f 
trade receivables do not reflect any significant credit losses. Given that the ~acroeconom1c 
indicators affecting customers of the Group have not undergone a~y substantial change, the 
Group expects the historical trend of minimal credit losses to contmue. The trend of the bad 
debts is negligible. 

Gross Carrying amount 

Average Expected loss rate 

Carrying amount of trade receivables (net of impainnent) 

31 March 2024 

553,546,271 

0.00% 

PHP 

31 March 2023 

504,944,939 

0.0% 

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as 
PHP follows: 

Balance as at the beginning of the year 
Impainnent loss recognised ( net) 
Amounts written off 

Balance as at the year end 

b) Financial instruments 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in liquid debt securities issued by 
mutual funds having a credit ranking of atleast 3 and above from CRJSIL or equivalent rating 
agency. Company monitors changes in credit risk by tracking published external credit 
ranking. Based on its on-going assessment of counterparty risk, the Company adjusts its 
exposure to various counterparties. 

ii. Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and 
collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is to, at all 
times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The 
Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It 
maintains adequate sources of financing including bilateral loans, debt and overdraft from banks at 
an optimised cost. Working capital requirements are adequately addressed by internally generated 
funds. Trade receivables are kept within manageable levels. 

The company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly 
marketable debt investments at an amount in excess of expected cash outflows on financial 
liabilities over the next six months. 

posure to liquidity risk 

he following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilitie '* 1A t.: d 
\Q_ 1lJ:J e amounts ?re gross an undiscounted, and include estimated interest pay 
~ -v , pact of nettmg agreements. 
" .,.'~-
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As at 31 l\1a rch 2024 

Trade payables 

Other Financial 
liabilities 

Borrowings 

Lease liabilities 

Total 

As at 31 March 2023 

Trade payables 

Other Financial 
liabilities 

Borrowings 

Lease liabilities 

Total 

iii. Market risk 

Carrying 
Amount 

Contractual Cash Flows 

Total 0-12 
months 

415,599,944 415,599,944 415,599,944 

I 0,042,224 10,042,224 I 0,042,224 

4,075,523 4,075,523 

429,717,692 429,717,692 425,642,168 

1-2 years 

4,075,523 

4,075,523 

2-5 
years 

Carrying Contractual Cash Flows 
Amount 

Total 0-12 1-2 years 2-5 
months years 

286, I 06,840 286, I 06,840 286, I 06,840 

1,194,607 1,194,607 1,194,607 

8,232,089 8,232,089 8,232,089 

3,315,253 3,315,253 3,315,253 

298,848,789 298,848,789 597,697,578 11,547,342 

PHP 

More than S 
years 

More than 5 
years 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates 
and equity prices - will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial 
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk 
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. Financial instruments 
affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and derivative 
financial instruments. 

Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in 
fore ign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The company uses derivative financial 
instruments such as foreign exchange contracts to manage its exposures to foreign exchange 
fluctuations All such transactions are carried out within the guidelines set by the risk management 
committee. 

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the basis of derivatives and the proportion of 
financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant. The analysis excludes the impact of 
movements in market variables on the carrying value of postemployment benefit obligations, 
provisions and on the non-financial assets and liabilities.The sensitivity of the relevant income 
statement item is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on 
the financial assets and financial liabilities held as of 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. 

iv. Currency risk 
The Company's foreign exchange risk results primarily from movements of the Philippine peso 
against the US dollar with respect to US dollar denominated financial assets and liabilities. 

The Company's transactional currency exposures arise from its inventories which is 100% 
purchases from Holding Company in US dollar. In addition, 32%as at 31 March 2024 and 32%as 
at 31 March 2023 of the Company's debt are denominated in US dollar. ·~,,~ .. ! "t'rt''IP ally 
revi~w f the foreign exchange rates and, as a practical mov ~ !57·~ ~ ~ liar 
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denominated time deposits in times when the Philippine peso is depreciating or decreases its US 
dollar denominated time deposits in times when the Philippine peso is appreciating. 

The following table analyses foreign currency risk as of 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023: 

Particulars 

Financial Assets 

Trade Payables 

Borrowings & Other Financial Liabilities 

et Assets I {Liabilities) 

31 March 2024 

(415,599,944) 

(3,213,512) 

(418,813,456) 

PHP 
31 March 2023 

(286, I 06,840) 

(3,016,543) 

(289,123,382) 

For the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, every percentage point depreciation / 
appreciation in the exchange rate between the PHPand respective currencies has affected the 
Company's incremental profit before taxas per below: 

Year 

31 March 2024 

31 March 2023 

Change in currency exchange rate 

+5% / (-5%) 

+5% / (-5%) 

PHP 
Effect on profit before tax 

20,940,676 I {20,940,676) 

14,456,169 / (14,456,169) 

33. Note on foreign currency exposures on assets and liabilities: 

During the year, the Company has not entered into Forward Exchange Contract. The year-end foreign 
currency exposures that have not been mitigated by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as below: 

Particulars 31 March 
2024 

PHP Foreign Currency 
31 March 31 March 31 March 

2023 2024 2023 
Amount 
Payable 439,754,129 289,123,382 7,497, 150 5,363,786 

a) Interest rate risk 

Foreign 
Currency 

USO 

The Company's exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long­
term debt obligations. Fixed rate financial instruments are subject to fair value interest rate 
risk. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change 
in interest rates, with all other variable held constant, of the Company's profit before income 
tax. The estimates are based on the outstanding interest-bearing liabilities of the Company 
with floating interest rate as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. 

PHP 
Year 

31 March 2024 
31 March 2023 

Change in interest rate 
+1% / (-1 %) 
+1% / (-1%) 

Effect on profit before tax 
100,422 / (100,422) 

94,267 I (94267) 

b) Price risk 
Company does not have any exposure to price risk, as there are no equity investments. 

34. Disclosure for operating leases under Ind AS 116 - "Leases": 

The Group have taken various premises under operating lease. These are generally cancellable and 
ranges from 11 months to 5 years and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agree~~~ s. 
Some of these lease agreements have price escalation clauses. There are no restriction!@~ !Wl 
these lease arrangements and there are no sub leases. There are no contingent rents. 
discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics. 
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Right-of-use assets 

Cost 

Opening Balance 

Additions 

Disposals 

Closing Balance 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Opening Balance 

Depreciation 

lmpainnent loss 

Eliminated on disposals of assets 

Closing Balance 

Carrying amounts 

Gross 

Net 

Breakdown of lease expenses 

Short-term lease expense 

Low value lease expense 

Total lease expense 

Cash outflow on leases 

(Repayment) / Addition of lease liabilities 

Total cash outflow on leases 

Maturity analysis 

31 March 2024 

Lease liabilities 

31 March 2023 

Lease liabilities 

35. Contingent Liabilities and commitments: 

31 March 2024 

10,745,558 

13,121,429 

(3,441 ,527) 

20,425,460 

4,344,256 

3,527,232 

(3,014,077) 

4,8757,410 

31 March 2024 

20,425,460 

15,568,050 

31 March 2024 
3,387,758 

3,387,758 

31 March 2024 

760,271 

760,271 

Less than 1 year 

4,075,523 

3,315,253 

There are no contingent liabilities and commitments by the Company. 

31 March 2023 

7,535,737 

3,209,821 

10,745,558 

3,258,192 

1,086,064 

4,344,256 

31 March 2023 

10,745,558 

6,401,302 

31 March 2023 
833,206 

833,206 

31 March 2023 

(1,084,836) 

(1,084,836) 

Over I years 

10,042,224 

4,400,089 
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36. Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 are given below: 

37. 

A) Relationships: 
Category I - Holding Company & Fellow Subsidiary 
Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India (Holding Company) 

Category II - Directors, Key Management Personnel & their Relatives: 
Sam Gioskos Director (APPi) 
& Relatives of Key Management Personnel 

B) Following transactions were carried out with related parties: 
Sr. No. Particulars Category 31 March 2024 

1. Purchase of Goods: 

2. 

3. 

Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India 
Key Management Compensation: 
Short Term Employee Benefits 
Sam Gioskos 
Dividend Paid to Ajanta Pharma 
Ltd., India 

C) Amount outstanding as on 31 March 2024 
Sr. No. Particulars 

1. Trade Payable : 
Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India 

Remuneration to Auditors: 
Particulars 
Audit Fees 

II 

Category 

1,230,173,668 

17,000,000 
I 69,999,575 

31 March 2024 

415,599,944 

31 March 2024 
300 800 

PHP 
31 March 2023 

1,074,992,267 

16,090,000 
250,000,000 

PHP 
31 March 2023 

286, I 06,840 

PHP 
31 March 2023 

278 600 

38. Additional disclosures required by Schedule III (amendments dated 24 March 
2021) to the Companies Act, 2013: 

A. Relationship with struck off company 

The Group has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or 
Companies Act, 1956. 

B. Undisclosed income 

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the 
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, I 961, that has not been recorded in the books of 
account. 

C. Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks 

The borrowings obtained by The Group from banks have been applied for the purposes for which 
such loans were taken. 

D. Details of benami property held 

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against The Grou 
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, J 988 ( 45 of J 
thereunder. 
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E. Wilful defaulter 

The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority. 

F. Compliance with number of layers of companies 

The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

G. Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements 

The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on 
current or previous financial year. 

H. Details of crypto currency or virtual currency 

The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or 
previous year. 

I. Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium 
i. The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), 

including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfof the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

ii. The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that 
the Group shall: 

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

b. (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

39. Previous year figures have been regrouped / re-classified wherever necessary, to confirm to current 
period's classification in order to comply with the requirements of the amended Schedule III to the 
Companies Act, 2013 effective from 0 I April 2023. 

40. The Company has one segment of activity namely "Pharmaceuticals". 

In terms of our report attached 

For G. R. Modi & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
(ICA1 FR W) 

Swapnil Modi 
Partner 

Mumbai, 29 April 2024 
um O: 2Y ID 1-0L\ B k..A St2-'?>5~ ~ 

For and on behalf of Board of Directorsof 
Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc. 

RajeshM. Agrawal 
Director 
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Independent Auditor's Report 
To the Members of Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd. 

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 
The accounts of AJA TA PHARMA IGERIA LTD. are being audited under the local laws of 
the country by the statutory auditor for the period 1st Jan 2023 to 31st December 2023. The 
company follows the period I st April 2023 to 31st March 2024. In order to consolidate the 
accounts of AJANTA PHARMA IGERIA LTD. With that of the company, we have been 
appointed by the management of the company to audit the reinstated accounts of AJA TA 
PHARMA IGERIA LTD. for the period I st April 2023 to 31st March 2024 under the 
companies Act in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS). 

Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of AJA TA 
PHARMA IGERIA LTD. (''the Company") comprising of the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 
31st March 2024, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the Standalone Cash Flow Statement, for the year then ended, and a summary of the 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements") prepared in accordance with group accounting policies 
followed by Ajanta Pharma Ltd. These Standalone financial statements have been prepared 
solely to enable Ajanta Pharma Ltd. to prepare its financial statements. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and 
profit/loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143( 10) of the Companies Act, 2013 . Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor 's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 



Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon. 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements. management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process in accordance with the group accounting policies followed by Ajanta. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 



(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. 

( e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
"Annexure A". 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position; 

ii. The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts, 
requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable 

losses; and 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

for G.R.Modi& Co 
Chartered Accountants 

CA Swapnil Modi 
Partner 
Membership number: 107574 
Mumbai 
Date: 29th April 2024 

UDIN No.: 24107574BKASEY6706 



Annexure - A to the Auditors' Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of AJANT A PHARMA 
IGERIA L TD.('·the Company'') as of 31st March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the 

standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance ote 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (' ICAl '). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act. 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 

ote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance ote") 
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor·s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements. whether 
due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31st March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

for G.R.Modi& Co 
Chartered Accountants 

CA Swapnil Modi 
Partner 
Membership number: 107574 
Mumbai 
Date: 29th April, 2024 

UDlN No: 24107574BKASEY6706 



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd. 

Balance Sheet 
as at 3 / March 2024 

(Currency: NGN) 

Assets 

on-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 
Right to use assets 

Current assets 
Financial assets 

Investments 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Equity and Liabilities 
Equity 

Equity share capital 
Other Equity 

Liabilities 
Non current liabilities 

Lease liability 

Current liabilities 
Other current liabilities 

Significant accounting policies 

Total assets 

Total Equity and Liabilities 

7 
7 

31 March 2024 
N 

3 I March 2023 

134,722 
3,230,584 3,892,195 

Total non-current assets ______ __:3:..i:,2=3:.::0:::,5.::.84.:... ____ 4....:c.0.;_2..;.6,;..,9_18:.... 

8 16,560,649 3,283.826 

Total current assets ______ ....c..:16:..,:.5:..:60c:.•:::64..c9:... ___ ...:3:..,:,2=8~3,.::.82=6:... 

19,791,234 7,310,743 

9 60,000,000 60,000,000 

JO (80,388,857) (79,928,400) 

Total equity (20,388,857) (19,928,400) 

11 3,230,585 4,1 76,340 

12 36,949,506 23,062,803 

Total current liabilities 36,949,506 23,062,803 

19,791,234 7,310,743 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

As per our report of even date anached 

In terms of our report attached 
For G. R Modi & Co. 

Swapnil Modi 
Partner 
Mumbai, 29 Apr, 2024 

'I 

,~A 

UDlNNO. : Q~J()+5 :f-q B KA 5 f\-lG.:,. 06 

For and on behalr of Board of Directors 
or Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd. 

-- Gaurang hah 
Director 

Mumbai, 29 Apr, 2024 



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd. 

Statement of Profit and Loss Account 
for the year ended 3 I March 202-1 

(Currency: NG N) 

Income 
Revenue from operations 
Other income 

Total income 
Expenses 
Purchase of stock-in-trade 
Changes in inventories of finished goods/work-in-progress/stock-in-trade 
Employee benefits expenses 
Finance costs 
Depreciation & amortisation expense 
Other expenses 

Total expenses 
Profit before tax 

Tax expense 
Current tax 
Deffered tax 

Profit for the yea r 

There are no exceptional items and discontinuing operations. 
Earning Per Equity Share (Basic & Diluted) (Face Value NN 1/-) (In Rs.) 

Significant accounting policies 
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

As per our report of even date anached 

In terms of our report attached 
For G. R. Modi & Co. 

Swapnil Modi 
Partner 
Mumbai, 29 Apr, 2024 

31 March 2024 

13 784,268 
14 248,299 

15 4,673,035 

16 (5,245,145) 
460,458 

(460,458) 

31 March 2023 
N 

517,538 
5,196,187.56 

(782,858) 
4,930,867 

(4,930,867) 

______ ...,.{4_;6...;.0:....,4_58.,_) __ _,(....:4,....;93...;.0:..;;.,8_;67.,_) 

_ _;1...;.8 _____ (>.:.0';.:.0:.!..1) ____ (:,.:.0;.:..08;;.L.) 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

Gaurang Shah 
Director 

Mum bai, 29 Apr, 2024 



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd. 

Statement of C hanges in Equity 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(Currency: NGN) 

A. Eguil)' Share Capital 

Authorised : 
Issued : 

ubscribed & Paid up: 

8. Other E ui1y 
Particulars 

All at I April 2022 
Profit for the period 
Other comprehensive income 
Total comprehensive income 
Transfer to Retained Earnings 
Dividend Paid 
Al 31 March 2023 
Profil for the period 
Other comprehensive income 
Total comprehensive income 
Transfer to Retained Earnings 
Dividend Paid 
At 3 1 March 2024 

Balance as at 
01 April 2023 

60,000,000 
60.000,000 
60,000,000 

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve 

Changes in Changes in 
Equity hare equity share 
Capital due capital during 
to prior the year 
period errors 

Securities 
Premium 
Account 

60,000,000 
60,000,000 
60,000,000 

General 
Reserve 

(9,676,976) 

(9,676,976) 

tt accompanying notes forming part oftbe financial statements 

In terms of our report attaebcd 
For C. R. Modi & Co. 

Mumba~ 29 Apr, 2024 

UDIN NO • 2.\..\ \ D::l-5 =¼-~ 

Changes in 
equity share 
capital during 
the year 

bare Based 
Payment 
Reserve 

NGN 
Balance as at 
31 March 
2024 

60,000,000 
60,000,000 
60,000,000 

Relained 
Earnings 

(65,320,557) 
(4,930,867) 

(4,930,867) 

(70,251,424) 
(460,458) 

(460,458) 

(70,711,882) 

Foreign Other items of other 
Currency comprehensive 

Tran.dalion incom~ 
e< 

Total on- Total Equity 
Controlling 

Interests 

(74,997,532) (74,997,532) 
(4,930,867) {4,930,867) 

(4,930,867) (4,930,867) 

(79,928.400) {79.928.400) 
(460,458) (460,458) 

(460,458) (460,458) 

(80,388,857) (80,388,857) 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 
Ajanta Pharma Ni d. 

Caurang Shah 
Director 



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd. 

Statement of cash flow 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(Currency: NGN) 

A. Cash now from operating activities 
Profit before tax 
Adjustment for 

Depreciation & amonisation expense 
Interest expense 
Unrealised foreign exchange difference 

Operating profit before working capital changes 
Changes in working capital 

Decrease / (increase) in trade receivable 
Decrease / (increase) in other current assets 
Decrease / (increase) in inventories 
Increase/ (decrease) in other current liabilities 
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 

Cash generated from operations 
Net income tax paid 

Net cash flow generated from operating activities 

B. Cash flow from investing activities 
Purchase of fixed assets-including intangible assets & cwip 
Capital expenditure on right to use asset 
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 

Net cash used in investing activities 

C. Cash now from financing activities 
Interest paid 
Repayment oflease liability (including interest thereon) 

Net cash used in financing activities 

et increase/ (decrease) in casb and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 
Figures in brackets indicates outflow. 

JI March 2024 

t:!!::!. 

(460,458) 

4,673,035 
248,299 

4,460,876 

13,886,703 

18,347,580 

18.347,580 

(3,876,702) 

(3,876,702) 

(248,299) 
(945,755) 

(I, 194,054) 

13,276,823 

3,283,826 
16,560.649 

JI March 2023 
NN 

(4,930,867) 

5,196,188 
517,538 

782,858 

2,400,000 

(2,004,947) 

1,177,911 

1,177,911 

(3,876,702) 

(3,876,702) 

(517,538) 
1,244,239 

726,701 

(1,972,090) 

5,255,915 
3,283,826 

ote: 
I. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under 'Indirect Method' as set out in Accounting Standard 7 (Ind AS - 7) 

"Statement of Cash Flow" under Section 133 of the Companies Act 20 I 3. 
2. Cash comprises cash on hand, current accounts and deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are sholn-terrn balances (with an 
original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition). 

Significant accounting policies 
The notes referred to above form an integral pan of the consolidated financial statements 
As per our repon of even date attached 

In terms of our report attached 
For G. R. Modi & Co. 

Swapnil Modi 
Partner 
l\lumbai, 29 Apr, 2024 
UDIN o.: 2.4101-5:f-4e, 1<AS t '4 (,~ 0{, 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 
,Id. 

Gaurang Shah 
Director 

Mumbai, 29 Apr, 2024 



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd. 
otes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

1. Corporate Information 

Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd. is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Nigeria and 
is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India. The address of its registered office is 
located at Block 6, House 6b, Howson Wright Estate, Oregun Road, Ojota, Lagos, Nigeria. 

The Company is primarily involved in the business of pharmaceutical and related activities. 

The Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 have been reviewed by the Audit 
Committee and subsequently approved by Company's Board of Directors at it's meeting held on 29 
April 2024. 

2. Basis of preparation 

The Financial Statement of the Company have been prepared in all material aspects in accordance 
with the recognition & measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards 
(hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. 

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost basis, 
except otherwise stated. 

3. Functional and Presentation Currency: 

Functional currency of the Company is igerian Naira (NGN). 

4. Rounding of Amounts 

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest 
crores. 

5. Current I non-current classification: 

The assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are presented based on current/non-current 
classification. 

An asset is current when it is: 
• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or 
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 

least twelve months after the reporting period. 
All other assets are classified as Non-Current. 

A liability is current when it is: 
• Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or 
• Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd. 
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result 
in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. 
All other liabilities are treated as Non-Current. 

Operating Cycle . . . . 
An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processmg and theu reahsatton 
in cash or cash equivalents. 

Based on the nature of products / activities of the company and the normal time between acquisition 
of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the company has determined its operating 
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non­
current. 

6. Significant Accounting Policies 

6.1 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes 
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included 
in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset as appropriate, only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost of assets, to their residual 
values over their estimated useful life as follows: 

Particulars Useful Life 
Motor Vehicles 4 ears 

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each end of 
reporting period. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable 
amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals of 
property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are 
included in the statement of profit or loss. 

6.2 Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Financial Assets 

Classification 

Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through 
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business model 
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial asset. 

Initial recognition and measurement 

11 financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of 
corded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributabl 
the financial asset. 



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd. 
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

Subsequent measurement 

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories: 
• Financial assets at fair value (FVTPL / FVTOCI) 
• Financial assets at amortised cost 
When assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive 
income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)). 

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for impairment, if any) 

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business model, whose 
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such 
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) 
method less impairment, if any. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement 
of profit and loss. 

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income ("FVTOCI") 

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair 
value, when asset is held within a business model, whose objective is to hold assets for both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized 
in the other comprehensive income. 

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss ("FVTPL") 

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair 
value with all changes recognised in profit or loss. 

Investment in Equity Instruments 

Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. All other equity 
instruments are classified as FVTOCI. Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, 
are recognised in the other comprehensive income. There is no recycling of the amounts from other 
comprehensive income to profit or loss. 

Investment in Debt Instruments 

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI. Any debt instrument, which does 
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss. 

Derecognition of Financial Assets 

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have 
expired or Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset. 

Impairment of Financial Assets 

In accordance with Ind - AS 109, Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for 
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instruments 
and trade receivables. 



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd. 
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

Financial Liabilities 

Classification 

Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent Measurement 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading 
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognised as well as through ETR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated 
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender 
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such 
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the 
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Derivative Financial Instrument 

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to mitigate 
its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value 
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair 
value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial 
liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

6.3 Inventories 

Finished products including traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is 
arrived on weighted average basis. The cost of Inventories has been computed to include all cost of 
purchases, cost of conversion, appropriate share of fixed production overheads based on normal 
capacity and other related cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the 
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses necessary to make the sale. 

~imv~id non-moving material, products nearing expiry, defective inventory are 
JT&'VQ1~11J~Jt net realisable value. 

• • "JO. 
\~ 07574 . 



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd. 
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

Goods and materials in transit are valued at actual cost incurred up to the date of balance sheet. 

6.4 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed 
deposit/highly liquid investments with original maturity period of three months or less that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short­
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an 
integral part of the company's cash management. 

6.5 Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the 
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash 
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash 
flows. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are 
segregated. 

6.6 Foreign Currency Transactions 

Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate 
prevailing on the date of the transaction. 

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are re-measured at the exchange 
rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost. 

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on restatement is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

6.7 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue recognition under Ind AS I I 5 (applicable from I April 2018) 

Under Ind AS 115, the group recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation was 
satisfied, i.e. when 'control' of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation were 
transferred to the customer. 

Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-Step Methodology which is as 
follows: 

Step I: Identify the contract(s) with a customer 

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract 

Step 3: Determine the transaction price 

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract 

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a perfonnance obligation 

Sale of Goods 



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd. 
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

The group applied Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective approach. 

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price adjusted for discounts and rebates, which is 
specified in a contract with customer. Revenue are net of estimated returns and truces collected from 
customers. 

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control is transferred to the 
customer and it is probable that consideration will be collected. Control of goods is transferred upon 
the shipment of the goods to the customer or when goods is made available to the customer. 

The transaction price is documented on the sales invoice and payment is generally due as per agreed 
credit terms with customer. 

The consideration can be fixed or variable. Variable consideration is only recognized when it is 
highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur. 

Sales return is variable consideration that is recognised and recorded based on historical experience, 
market conditions and provided for in the year of sale as reduction from revenue. The methodology 
and assumptions used to estimate returns are monitored and adjusted regularly in line with trade 
practices, historical trends, past experience and projected market conditions. 

Interest income 

Interest income is recognised with reference to the Effective interest Rate method. 

Dividend income 

Dividend from investment is recognised as revenue when right to receive is established. 

Income from Export Benefits and Other Incentives 

Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are accrued as revenue in the year in which the 
goods are exported and / or services are rendered only when there reasonable assurance that the 
conditions attached to them will be complied with, and the amounts will be received. 

6.8 Employee Benefits 

Short-term Benefits - The Company recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an 
expense for services rendered by employees during the accounting period. Short-term benefits given 
by the Company to its employees include salaries and wages and other non-monetary benefits. 

Post-Employment Benefits - No provision has been made in respect of employee retirement 
benefits as employees are not eligible for such benefits. Besides the company does not have any 
pension scheme or any contracted agreement binding itself to the employees. 

Share-based compensation 
Company has no share based compensation plan. 

6.9 Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs comprise of other bank charges. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time 
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost o er 

~=~.1-, wing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing co 
ther costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 
ed to statement of profit and loss as financial expenses over the term ofbo 
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6.10 Lease 

The company's lease asset class primarily consists of leases for land and buildings. The Company 
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a 
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (I) the contract involves the use of an identified 
asset (~) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through 
the penod of the lease and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") 
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases 
with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term 
and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the 
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that 
they will be exercised. 

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the 
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the 
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the 
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for 
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts 
may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the 
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset 
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other 
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to 
which the asset belongs. 

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease 
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the generally accepted interest rate. Lease 
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the 
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. 

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease 
payments have been classified as financing cash flows. 

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the 
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the 
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant 

lease. 
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generally accepted interest rate and the right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had 
been applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the generally accepted 
interest rate at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended 31 March, 
20 I 9 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the 
accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report for year ended 31 March, 2019. 

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of 
NGN 6,763,975 and a lease liability of NGN 7,270,613. The cumulative effect of applying the 
standard, amounting to NGN 506,639 was debited to retained earnings, net of taxes. The effect of 
this adoption is insignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period and earnings per share. Ind 
AS 11 6 will result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash 
outflows from financing activities on account of lease payments. 

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application: 

a. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic 
environment with a similar end date. 

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less 
than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application. 

c. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of 
initial application. 

d. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. 
Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases 
under Ind AS 17. 

The interest rate applied to lease liabilities as at I April, 20 I 9 is 9%. 

6.11 Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity 
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the 
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for 
deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that 
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential 
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at 
fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, 
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each 
period presented. 

6.12 Income Taxes 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. 

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent 
that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other 
comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount 
expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the respective Country's tax rates 
and tax laws that have been enacted by the balance sheet date. 

ferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all tempor ,,. ·..--ff.:....1',Li'P:ctl, ."';:,;;_ll::" arising 
een the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts _ ents. 

·1Ub4il ~• 
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Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance 
sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using respective Country's tax rates and tax 
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to 
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be 
recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is 
recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive 
enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future 
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can 
be utilized. The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally 
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net 
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

6.13 Dividends to Shareholders 

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which 
the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on 
approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable is recognised directly in equity. 

6.14 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments 

General 
Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal 
or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. 

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted to its 
present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the 
balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates. 

If there is any expectation that some or all of the provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursement is 
recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense 
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any virtually certain 
reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax 
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of: 
• A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources 

will be required to settle the obligation; 
• A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimates is possible; 
• A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is 

remote. 
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Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements. Contingent assets 
are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statements. 

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for 
completion of assets and Non-cancellable operating lease. 

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance 
sheet date. 

Asset Retirement Obligation 
Asset retirement obligations (ARO) are provided for those operating lease arrangements where the 
Company has a binding obligation at the end of the lease period to restore the leased premises in a 
condition similar to inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs to 
settle the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of that 
particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific 
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised in the income 
statement as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually 
and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are 
added to or deducted from the cost of the asset. 

6.15 Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet 
date in accordance with Ind AS 113. 

Financials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following 
material items in the statement of financial position: 
• Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value received from Bank. 
• Mutual Funds are measured at fair values as per Net Asset Value (NA V). 
• Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Valuation Report. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or settle a liability in an ordinary 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic 
best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
• Level l - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is ~igajificl}.llt o the fair 

easurement is directly or indirectly observable. t/r.:'-\ •-,c~. 
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• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is unobservable. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re­
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and 
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of 
the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

6.16 Recent accounting pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing 
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from l April 2023. 

6.17 Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, 
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities in future periods. 

(a) Arrangement containing lease 

(b) 

(c) 

At the inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether the arrangement is or 
contains a lease. At the inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease, 
Company separates payments and other consideration required by the arrangement into 
those for the lease and those for the other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. 

The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the 
arrangements that such contracts are in the nature of operating leases. 

Multiple element contracts with vendors 
The Company has entered into multiple element contracts with vendors for supply of goods 
and rendering of services. The consideration paid is/may be determined independent of the 
value of supplies received and services availed. Accordingly, the supplies and services are 
accounted for based on their relative fair values to the overall consideration. The supplies 
with finite life under the contracts (as defined in the significant accounting policies) have 
been accounted under Property, Plant and Equipment and/or as Intangible assets, since the 
Company has economic ownership in these assets. Company believes that the current 
treatment represents the substance of the arrangement. 

Property, Plant and equipment 
Determination of the estimated useful life of tangible assets and the assessment as to which 
components of the cost may be capitalized. Useful life of tangible assets is based on the life 
of useful lives/rates prescribed by the GAAPs of the respective countries. Assumptions also 
need to be made, when the Company assesses, whether an asset may be capitalised and 
which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalised. 
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(d) 

(e) 

(f) 

Intangible Assets 
Internal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of lntangible assets. 
Management believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable. 

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations 
The obligation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on ~e basis of actuai:ial 
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends tn salary escalation 
and vested future benefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined with 
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on the government bonds. The 
period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post­
employment benefit obligations. 

Recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax 
Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent 
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary difference can be utilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be 
available while recognising deferred tax assets. 

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and 
deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the 
carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual 
outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial 
statements. 

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the 
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business 
relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, 
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes 
to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already 
recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible 
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective countries in which it operates. 
The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous 
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the 
responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of 
issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective country. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant 
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can 
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, future tax 
planning strategies and recent business performances and developments. 

(g) Recognition and measurement of other provisions 
The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the 
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at 
the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary 
from the figure included in other provisions. 

(h) Contingencies 
Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, 

":----~~..... spect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it • • to 
fl. ·" -cy- ict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy. r <j I 
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(i) Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances 
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nonnal value as reduced by 
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are 
written off when management seems them not collectible. Impainnent is made on the 
expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected 
life of the financial assets. 

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption about risk of default 
and expected loss rates. Judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to 
the impainnent calculation are based on past history, existing market condition as well as 
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 

(j) Insurance claims 
Insurance claims are recognised when the Company has reasonable certainty of recovery. 

(k) Impairment reviews 
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit ('CGU') 
exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs 
to sell and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow 
model. In calculating the value in use, certain assumptions are required to be made in 
respect of highly uncertain matters, including management's expectations of growth in 
EBITDA, long tenn growth rates; and the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks 
involved. 
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(Currency NGN) 

7 p on rt'l', pl t and eo 1inmt:nt canital work in -nro•rus, invtttmt:nt prope_r1v and othr.r incaneible anc.t:1 ro • on uo 
Gross 81ock ICost Or Deemed Costl 

Partkulan 
0 1 April 202J Additions Disposals Adjust menu 

(A) Tangible A.ssds 
Vehicles 10.000,000 

To1al Tancible Au el.I 10,000,000 . . 

Previous Y car 10,000.000 

(8) Intangible Aut:IJ: 

RiJ:.ht to use 13.4 16 696 3 876.702 

Toe al lntane.ible Asnts ll,4 16,696 J ,876 702 

Previous V car 9.539,994 3,876,702 

Toc•I Fiud AH<II (A) + (81 

NN 
Accumulated Denrec.iation/Amortiution Nt:t Block 

JI Morch 2024 01 April 202l For lht: Oispoul• Adju.1tmt:nts J I March 2024 J I March 2024 J I Mar 2023 

Yur . . . . 

10,000.000 9,865,278 134,722 10,000,000 134,722 

10,000,000 9 ,865,278 134,722 10,000,000 IJ.l,722 

10,000,000 7.397,222 2,468.056 9,865,278 134,722 2 602,778 

17,293.398 9,5:4,501 4,538,313 14.062.814 J 230,584 3,892,195 

17,293,398 9,524,501 4,538,JIJ 14,062,814 3 ,230,584 J ,892,195 

13,4 16,696 6,796,369 2,728,132 . 9,524,SOI 3,892,195 2,743,625 
J,lJ0,584 4 ,026,918 
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(Currency: NGN) 

8 Cuh •nd cuh equivalents 
Cuh and Cash Equivalents 

Balance with Banks. In Current Accounts 

9 Equity Share C1plt•I 

Authorised : 
Ordinary Shares of NN I each 

ISJued, Sub,cribed & Paid up: 
Ordinary Shanes ofNN I each fully paid up 

JI March 2024 
Number of 

Shires 

60.000,000 

60,000,000 

31 March 2024 JI March 2023 
NN NN 

16,560,649 3,283,826 

16,560,649 J,283,826 

JI March 2024 JI March 2023 JI March 2023 
Number of 

NN Shares NN 

60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 

60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 

(1) Reconciliation of number of equity shares ouU11nding 1t the beginning ind It the end of th;.;e""'-'-ea"-r_:'-----------------------

Number of shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 
Add : Number of shanes alloncd as fully paid-up during the year 

Less· Number of shms bought back during the year 
Number of shares outstanding as at the end of the year 

(b) Rights, prtferenees ind restriction• attached to shares 

31 March 2024 
Number or 

Shares 

60,000,000 

60,000,000 

The company has issued only one clus of equity shares " ith voung rights having I par value ofNN I per share 

The company have not declared any dividend. 

JI March 2024 JI March 2013 
Number of 

NN Shares 

60,000,000 60,000,000 

60,000,000 60,000,000 

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shms will be entitled to receive r,,maining assets of the company. The distribution 

will be in proportion to the numbers of equity shms held by shareholders. 

(c) ~tails of equity shartholders holding more thin 5'/4 

Name of Shareholdtr 

Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India 

(d) Shires reserved for issue under options 

10 OTIIER EQUITY 

General Reservt 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Add • Transferred from Statement of Profit & Loss 

Exchange Fluctuation Reserve 

Surplus in tht S111tment of Profit ind Loss 
Balance at the beginning of the year 

Profit for the year 
Less: Appropriations 

-Transferred to Retained Earnings 

Balance at the year end 
Total Other Equity 

11 LEASE LIABILITY 

Lease liability 

12 Othtr Currtnt Liabilities 

Others payables 

JI March 2024 JI March 2024 J I March 2023 

umber of Number of 
Shires Shires 

60,000,000 100.00 60,000,000 

Nil Nil 

(9,676,976) 

(9,676,976) 

(70,25 I ,424) 

(460,458) 

(70,711,882) 
(80,388,857) 

3,230,585 
3,230,585 

36,949.506 
36,949,506 

JI March 2023 

NN 

60,000,000 

60,000,000 

J I March 2023 

% Holding 
100.00 

Nil 

(9,676,976) 

(9,676,976) 

(65,320,557) 
(4,930,867) 

!70,251,424) 
(79,928,400) 

4,176,340 
4,176,340 

23,062,803 

23,062,803 
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(Currency: NGN) 

13 Empoly,. Benefit Expen,es 
Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Allowances 

14 Finance Cost 
On Lease Liability 

15 Depreciation 
Depreciation of Tangible Assets (Refer note 7) 
Depreciation of Righi to use Assets (Refer note 7) 

16 Other Expenses 
Travelling Expenses 
Rcpaill to Othcll 
Exchange Difference (Net) 
Miscellaneous ExpeM<S 

31 March 2024 

NN 

784,268 

784,268 

248.299 

248,299 

134,722 

4,538,3 13 

4,673,035 

322,400 

(5,592,598) 

25,054 

(5,245,145) 

31 Much 2023 

NN 

517.538 

517,538 

2,468,056 

2,728, 132 

5,196, 188 

179,000 

5,000 

(2,005,8 I 8) 

1,038,960 

(782,858) 
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17. Capital Management 

18. 

Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market 
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on 
capital, as well as the level of dividends to equity shareholders. The Company'sobjective for capital 
management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and support the growth 
of the Company. The company determined the capital requirement based on annual operating plans 
and long term and other strategic investment plans. 

Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'adjusted net debt' to 'adjusted equity'. For this purpose, 
adjusted net debt is defined as debt less cash and cash equivalents and short term investments. 
Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity. 

Company's policy is to keep the ratio below 1.00 and its adjusted net debt to equity ratio at 31 March 
2024 was as follows. NGN 

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Debt 

Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 16,560,649 3,283,826 

Net Debt A (16,546,649) (3,283,826) 

Equity B (20,388,857) ( I 9,928,400) 

'et Debt to Equity ratio A/B IA NIA 

Earnings Per share (EPS): 

The numerator and denominator used to calculate Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share: 
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Bai ·c and Diluted Earnings Per Share: 

Profit attributable to Equity shareholders- for Basic EPS (NGN) A 

Add: Dilutive effect on profit (NGN) 8 

Profit attributable to Equity shareholders for computing Diluted C=A-8 
EPS (NGN) 
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares outstanding - for D 
Basic EPS 
Add: Dilutive effect of option outstanding- Number of Equity E 
Shares 
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for Diluted EPS F=D+E 

Face Value per Equity Share (NGN) 

Dasie Earnings Per Share (NGN) AID 

Diluted Earnings Per Shares (NGN) C/F 

(460,458) 

(460,458) 

60,000,000 

60,000,000 

I 

(0.01) 

(0.01) 

(4,930,867) 

(4,930,867) 

60,000,000 

60,000,000 

I 

(0.08) 

(0.08) 

19. Employee Benefits 

As required by Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits' ,the Company offers its employees: Short-term 
employee benefits - These benefits include salaries and wages and other allowances which are paid 
immediately. The total consideration paid in 2023-24was NGN 2,129,600 (Previous Year NGN 
2,129,500). 

Retirement plan - No provision has been made in respect of employee retirement benefits as 
employees are not eligible for such benefits. Besides the company does not have any pension scheme 
or any contracted agreement binding itself to the employees. 
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20. Financial Instrument - fair values and risk management 

Fair value measurements NGN 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Financial Instruments by category 

Financial Assets 

FVTPL Amortised Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Total Financial Assets 

Financial Liabilities 

Lease Liability 

Other Current Liabilities 

Total Financial Liabilities 

Fair value measurement of lease liabilities is not required. 

16,560,649 

16,560,649 

3,230,585 

36,949,506 

40,180,091 

3,283,826 

3,283,826 

4,176,340 

23,062,803 

27,239,143 

Level I - The hierarchy in level I includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This 
includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NA V. 

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (like Mark to 
Market derivative and Non-convertible Debentures) is detennined using valuation techniques which 
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entityspecific estimates. If 
all significant inputs required to fair value as instrument are observable, the instrument is included in 
level 2. 

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the 
instrument is included in level 3. 

A. Financial risk management 
Company has exposure to following risks arising from financial instruments: 
• Credit risk 
• Liquidity risk 
• Market risk 
• Currency risk 

Risk management framework 
Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 
Company's risk management framework. Management is responsible for developing and monitoring 
the Company's risk management policies, under the guidance of Audit Committee. 

Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by it, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management 
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's 
activities. Company, through its training and procedures aims to maintain a disciplined and 
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. 

Company's Audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's 
risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management 

~~-- ework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee i 
sight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad ho 
agement controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit co 
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i. Credit risk 
Company's credit risk is minimal. The trade receivables arise mainly from transactions with its 
approved customers. The maximum exposure to credit on these transactions is equal to the 
carrying amount of these financial instruments. Customers are subject to stringent financial, credit 
and legal verification process. In addition, trade receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing 
basis to ensure timely collections. Accordingly, the Company's exposure to bad debts is not 
significant. 

ii. Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and 
collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is to, at all 
times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The 
Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It 
maintains adequate sources of financing including bilateral loans, debt and overdraft from banks at 
an optimised cost. Working capital requirements are adequately addressed by internally generated 
funds. Trade receivables are kept within manageable levels. 

iii. Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates 
and equity prices - will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial 
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk 
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. Financial instruments 
affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and derivative 
financial instruments. Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the 
effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. All transactions are carried 
out within the guidelines set by the risk management committee. 

The sensitivity analysis hasbeen prepared on the basis of derivatives and the proportion of 
financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant. The analysis excludes the impact of 
movements in market variables on the carrying value of postemployment benefit obligations, 
provisions and on the non-financial assets and liabilities.The sensitivity of the relevant income 
statement item is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on 
the financial assets and financial liabilities held as of 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. 

iv. Currency risk 
The Company's foreign exchange risk results primarily from movements of the Nigerian Naira 
against the US dollar with respect to US dollar denominated financial assets and liabilities. The 
Company's transactional currency exposures arise from its inventories which is purchases from 
Holding Company in US dollar. The Company regularly reviews the trend of the foreign exchange 
rates. Company does not have any assets / liability in USO. 

a) Interest rate risk 
The Company have no borrowings and hence there is no interest rate risk. 

b) Price risk 
Company does not have any exposure to price risk, as there is no equity investments. 

21. Note on foreign currency exposures on assets and liabilities: 

During the year, the Company has not entered into Forward Exchange Contract. The company does not 
have any asset / liability at the year ending on 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. 
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22. Disclosure for operating leases under Ind AS 116- "Leases": 

The Group have taken various premises under operating lease. These are generally cancellable and 
ranges from 11 months to 5 years and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms. 
Some of these lease agreements have price escalation clauses. There are no restrictions imposed by 
these lease arrangements and there are no sub leases. There are no contingent rents. Applied a single 
discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics. 

Rightofuse assets 

Cost 

Opening Balance 

Additions 

Disposals 

Closing Balance 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Opening Balance 

Depreciation 

Impainnent loss 

Eliminated on disposals of assets 

Closing Balance 

Carrying amounts 

Gross 

Net 

Cash outflow on leases 

(Repayment) / Addition of lease liabilities 

Total cash outflow on leases 

Maturity analysis 

31 March 2024 

Lease liabilities 

31 March 2023 

Lease liabilities 

,..,,, •/ -~ r :·'-:! .L I , r. 

' , '"o 
* ( • 

!uf:i/4 * 
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31 March 2024 

13,416,696 

3,876,702 

17,293,398 

9,524,501 

4,538,313 

14,062,814 

31 March 2024 

17,293,398 

3,230,584 

31 March 2024 
(945,755) 

(945,755} 

Less than 1 year 

31 March 2023 

9,539,994 

3,876,702 

13,416,696 

6,796,369 

2,728,132 

9,524,501 

31 March 2023 

13,416,696 

3,892,195 

31 March 2023 
1,244,239 

1,244,239 

Over 1 years 

3,230,585 

4, 176,340 
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23. Contingent Liabilities and commitments: 

There are no contingent liabilities and commitments by the Company. 

24. Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 are given below: 

25. 

A) Relationships: 
Category I - Holding Company & Fellow Subsidiary 
Ajanta Phanna Ltd., India (Holding Company) 

B) Following transactions were carried out with related oarties: NGN 
Sr. No. Particulars Category 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

2. Expense Reimbursement: 

Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India 

C) Amount outstandinl! as on 31 March 2024 
Sr. No. Particulars 

I. Advance Payable: 

Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India 

Remuneration to Auditors: 
Particulars 
Audit Fees 

Category 

20,133,795 15,201 ,000 

NGN 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

15,504,257 2,155,052 

31 March 2024 
537 500 

NGN 
31 March 2023 

537,500 

26. Additional disclosures required by Schedule ill (amendments dated 24 March 
2021) to the Companies Act, 2013: 

A. Relationship with struck off company 

The Group has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or 
Companies Act, 1956. 

B. Undisclosed income 

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the 
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 , that has not been recorded in the books of 
account. 

C. Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks 

The borrowings obtained by The Group from banks have been applied for the purposes for which 
such loans were taken. 

D. Details of benami property held 

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against The Group for holding benami 
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 ( 45 of 1988) and Rules made 
thereunder. 

E. Wilful defaulter 

The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority. 

F. Compliance with number of layers of companies 

complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies,.Act, -W E3. 
-Y/ \ 

RC 106478;, S 
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G. Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements 

The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on 
current or previous financial year. 

H. Details of crypto currency or virtual currency 

The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or 
previous year. 

I. Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium 
1. The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), 

including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall : 
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

11. The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that 
the Group shall: 

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

b. (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

27. Previous year figures have been regrouped / re-classified wherever necessary, to confirm to current 
period's classification in order to comply with the requirements of the amended Schedule Ill to the 
Companies Act, 2013 effective from 01 April 2023. 

28. The Company has one segment of activity namely "Pharmaceuticals". 

In terms of our report attached 

For G. R. Modi & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
(!CAI FRN· W) 

Mumbai, 29 April 2024 
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For and on beha lf of Board of Directors of 
Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd. 

Gaurang Shah 
Director 


